
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Monday, September 28, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
40 East Center Avenue 

Village Hall Board Room 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. AWARDS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 

a) A Proclamation Designating October 2015 as “Fire Prevention Month” 
b) A Proclamation Designating October 26 – October 30, 2015 as “Red Ribbon Week” 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  
 

5. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen (15) minutes during this item for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board of Trustees on any matter not listed 
on the agenda.  Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes. 
 

6. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees will entertain requests from anyone present on the order of 
business to be conducted during the Village Board Meeting. 
 

7. VILLAGE FINANCE REPORT 
 

a) Warrant Report for September 16-30, 2015 
 

8. VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

9. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
10. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 
11. ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Please note all correspondence was delivered to the Village Board of Trustees in the Informational Reports 
on September 11 and 18, 2015. 
 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – September 28, 2015 
 

Page 2 

12. A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR THE RENOVATION OF CERTAIN 
IMPROVEMENTS (Swimming Pool, Wading Pool, Equipment Shed and Related Facilities) AT THE 
LAKE BLUFF PARK DISTRICT – BLAIR PARK 
 

13. A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (GovITC Consortium) 
REGARDING INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT 

 
14. A RESOLUTION HONORING THE 25TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE PASSAGE OF THE AMERICANS 

WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
 
15. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE VII OF THE LAKE BLUFF 

MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING SMOKING REGULATIONS (E-Cigarettes) 
 

16. AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A BREWPUB AT 16 E. SCRANTON 
AVENUE 

  
17. TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
 
18. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

R. Drew Irvin 
Village Administrator 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting 
and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the 
meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator, at 234-0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake 
Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 
 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 

Designating October 2015 as “Fire Prevention Month” 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2014, U.S. Fire Departments responded to 1,298,000 fires, or one fire 
every 24 seconds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, nationwide there were 3,275 fire deaths, or one every 192 minutes; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, property loss resulting from fire during the same period totaled in excess of 
11.6 billion dollars; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, an enlightened and supportive citizenry can be effective in reducing both loss 
of life and property damage resulting from fire; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Bluff is committed to protecting its citizens from fire 
losses; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Bluff is served by an all volunteer Fire Department which 
works with its residents to promote fire safety.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, COUNTY OF 
LAKE, AND STATE OF ILLINOIS, hereby proclaims October 2015, “Fire Prevention 
Month” in the Village of Lake Bluff. 
 
 Village of Lake Bluff residents are encouraged to change the batteries in their home smoke 
detectors, form a fire escape plan for their home, and participate in continuing information and 
educational activities of the Lake Bluff Fire Department, during Fire Prevention Month and 
throughout the year, and to practice fire safety and prevention on a continuing basis. 
 
PASSED this 28th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Village Clerk      Village President 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM: 3A

cweatherall
Typewritten Text



 

 
 
 
 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 

Designating October 26 – October 30, 2015 as “Red Ribbon Week” 
 

 WHEREAS, the most precious resources we have, our future leaders, are the 
children in our community; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, children face decisions about using alcohol, tobacco, and other 
drugs as early as their elementary school years; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is critical that the adults in children’s lives take the time to talk to 
them regularly about the risks of alcohol and other drugs, symbolized by the red ribbons 
in our community; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, parents, teachers and community leaders play an important role in 
providing positive activities which will give youth the opportunity to choose healthy 
lifestyles; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Bluff, LEAD, CROYA, SpeakUP! Coalition 
and our local schools are taking an active role in building assets in our youth and helping 
to teach them about positive decision making. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE VILLAGE 
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE 
BLUFF, COUNTY OF LAKE, AND STATE OF ILLINOIS, that: October 26 
through October 30, 2015 is Red Ribbon Week in the Village of Lake Bluff and urge all 
citizens to do what they can to help our youth make a commitment to a drug-free life. 
 
PASSED this 28th day of September, 2015. 
 
    
       
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________   _________________________ 
Village Clerk      Village President 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM: 3B



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Village President O’Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Lake Bluff Village Hall Board 
Room, and Village Clerk Aaron Towle called the roll.  
 
The following were present: 
 
Village President:  Kathleen O’Hara 
 
Trustees:   Barbara Ankenman 

Steve Christensen 
Mark Dewart 
Eric Grenier 
John Josephitis 

    William Meyer 
 
Also Present:   Aaron Towle, Village Clerk 

Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
    Andrew Fiske, Assistant Village Attorney     
    Jeff Hansen, Village Engineer 

Michael Croak, Building Codes Supervisor  
David Belmonte, Police Chief    
Jake Terlap, Public Works Superintendent 
Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator (A to VA)  

  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
President O’Hara led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to approve the August 24, 2015 Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes as presented.  
Trustee Grenier seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

4. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

There were no requests to address the Board. 
 

5. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 
There were no requests to change the order of the meeting. 
 

6. ITEM #6A – WARRANT REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 1-15, 2015 AND AUGUST 2015 
PAYROLL EXPENDITURES 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting September 14, 2015 

2 
 

 
President O’Hara reported expenditure of Village funds for payment of invoices in the amount of 
$384,154.49 for September 1-15, 2015. 
 
President O’Hara reported expenditure of Village funds for payroll in the amount of $274,517.72 for 
August 2015. 
 
As such, the total Expenditures for this period is in the amount of $658,672.21. 
 
As there were no questions from the Board, Trustee Meyer moved to approve the Warrant Report.   Trustee 
Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis and Meyer  
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 

7. ITEM #6B – AUGUST 2015 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
In the absence of Finance Director Susan Griffin, President O’Hara provided a brief summary of the 
August 2015 Finance Report, highlighting major revenue sources and expenditures for the period.  
 

 Sales tax revenue for May 2015 is $230,000 which is $16,000 or 7.4% greater than May 2014.  
Home rule sales tax of $60,000 which is $8,000 or 16.3% greater than May 2014; 

 May has traditionally been the largest monthly receipt of state shared income tax revenue due to 
the filing of taxes in April.  At $240,000 May – August 2015 revenue is 18% greater than the same 
period in 2014; 

 Building permit revenue is down 46% from the prior year as expected due to the decline in 
commercial development projects but still represents 34% of the annual budget projection; 

 Capital project expenditures exceed the same period in 2014 by $635,700; 
 Water billed consumption is down 5.124 million gallons.  This resulted in a decline in water sales 

of $25,662 (after accounting for the change in water rates.); and 
 We continue to closely monitor the actions in Springfield and assess the implications for the 

Village should bills such as the “2 year property tax freeze” which recently passed the Senate 
become law. 
 

Village Administrator Drew Irvin stated at its last meeting the Northwest Municipal Conference discussed 
the state of the state’s budget issues.  He expressed his understanding that certain emergency dispatch 
agencies may not receive State pass through revenue for E911 funds because the State doesn’t have an 
approved budget. 
 
Village Administrator Irvin stated last year the Village experienced significant building permit revenue as 
a result of the Target development and noted Staff anticipates the Village will achieve the $660,000 target 
in building permit revenue for the current fiscal year. 
 
Building Codes Supervisor Michael Croak provided the Board with an update regarding the building 
permit revenue expected as a result of new residential construction, home demolition and the construction 
of the third outlot building at the Target site. 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting September 14, 2015 

3 
 

 
Trustee Dewart asked if the 18% increase in income tax revenue was the result of timing or if gross income 
in the community had increased.  Village Administrator Irvin expressed his uncertainty regarding the 
matter. 
 
President O’Hara reported on the recent Senate Subcommittee meeting which discussed how local 
municipalities may be impacted if State shared revenue was reduced. A discussion ensued. 
 
Trustee Grenier expressed his understanding Lake Bluff has a 7.5% sales tax rate and asked how much of 
that goes to the Village.  Village Administrator Irvin stated the percentage varies depending on the type 
of goods purchase and Staff will confirm the percentage at a future meeting. 
 
As there were no further questions from the Board, Trustee Christensen moved to accept the Finance 
Report. Trustee Dewart seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

8. ITEM #7 – VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Village Administrator Irvin provided background information and an update regarding the Stonebridge 
Planned Commercial Development.   He stated recently the developers completed interior deconstruction 
of the existing Mansion and Coach House which has allowed contractors/bidders to go through the 
property to provide accurate quotes for the proposed development.   
 
In response to a question from Trustee Grenier, Village Administrator Irvin stated the resolution approving 
a new preliminary development plan for Stonebridge does not indicate a specific timeframe to complete 
the project. 
 

9. ITEM #8 - VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
In the absence of Village Attorney Friedman, Assistant Village Attorney Andrew Fiske had no report. 
 

10. ITEM #9 – VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
President O’Hara reported on the newspaper article “Lake Bluff Is Tops In Scenic Views” which was 
published in the Daily North Shore.   She reported the Lake Bluff History Museum will unveil the Mural, 
removed from East School, in the Village Board Room at 4:00 p.m. on September 20th.   She also noted a 
WPA picture of the Lake Bluff Fire station will be hung in the Village Hall stairwell. 
 

11. ITEM #10 – ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 
President O’Hara introduced the correspondence from the Informational Report on August 21, 28 and 
September 4, 2015. 
 
Trustee Ankenman moved to accept the correspondence as submitted. Trustee Grenier seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

12. ITEM #11 – A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ROCK SALT FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL FROM CARGILL INCORPORATED SALT 
DIVISION (State Purchase Program) 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting September 14, 2015 

4 
 

 
 
President O’Hara reported annually the State of Illinois Office of Procurement conducts a joint bid for 
roadway maintenance agencies statewide.  This year the state’s approved bid of $67.41 per ton was awarded 
to Cargill, Inc.  At this price the Village will easily be able to purchase approximately 700 tons of rock salt 
within budget (FY2015-16 budget includes $75,000 for the purchase of rock salt).   
 
President O’Hara reported the Village must commit to purchase 100% of the order and the supplier commits 
to provide 120% of the ordered amount at the bid price should severe weather conditions arise.  As you may 
recall, last year’s price per ton was $87.40 with the Village’s salt usage totaling only 515 tons due to less than 
average snow fall and ice.  The Village currently has 443 tons left over from last season.  With the purchase 
of 700 more tons of salt the Village should have adequate road salt available for the upcoming winter season. 
 
In response to comments from the Board, Public Works Superintendent Jake Terlap reported on how much 
salt was leftover from the previous year and how much salt could be stored at the Public Works facility. 
 
In response to a comment from Trustee Dewart, Village Administrator Irvin expressed his belief that crack 
sealing Village roads has been an effective strategy to the Village road maintenance program. 
 
Following a brief discussion, Trustee Meyer moved to adopt the resolution. Trustee Dewart seconded the 
motion. The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer and Ankenman 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 

13. ITEM #12 – SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF TITLE IV OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING A 
COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE HAULING AND RECYCLING PROGRAM 

President O’Hara reported along with amending the Illinois Municipal Code and the Illinois Solid Waste 
Planning and Recycling Act, Public Act 98-1079 (“Act”) created the Solid Waste Hauling and Recycling 
Program Act.  The Act (effective August 26, 2014) requires each hauler operating in a county or 
municipality to offer collection services for recyclable materials to their non-residential business 
customers, and to provide a written offer to provide recycling services, at least once every 2 years, to their 
non-residential business customers that are not recycling.  She further noted the Act also prohibits a 
municipality with a population of less than 1,000,000 from awarding a commercial franchise unless it: (1) 
provides written notice to all haulers licensed by the municipality of its intent to issue a request for 
proposal for a commercial franchise; (2) adopts an ordinance requiring a 36-month reporting program to 
determine the percentage of non-residential businesses in the municipality contracting for the collection 
of recyclable materials, and (3) demonstrates either (i) that the recycling participation for the final six 
months of the 36-month long reporting period is less than 50% of the total number of businesses served 
in the municipality or (ii) that during 2 consecutive 6-month reporting periods after the 36-month reporting 
period less than 50% of businesses are under contract for the collection of recyclable materials.   

President O’Hara reported based on the direction provided at the June 22nd Committee-of-the-Whole 
(COW) meeting and the Village’s Strategic Plan goal to enhance recycling efforts, an Ordinance has been 
prepared that will authorize the Village to initiate a commercial franchise program which (if ultimately 
enacted) may help control costs for local businesses, increase recycling, and reduce greenhouse gases  



Board Trustees Regular Meeting September 14, 2015 

5 
 

 

associated with collection from non-residential locations. The Village Board approved first reading of the 
ordinance at its August 24th meeting.  

As there were no questions, Trustee Grenier moved to approve the ordinance.  Trustee Dewart seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer, Ankenman and Christensen 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 

14. ITEM #13 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE VII OF THE LAKE BLUFF MUNICIPAL 
CODE REGARDING SMOKING REGULATIONS (E-Cigarettes) 
 
President O’Hara reported in 2008 the Village Board supported an aggressive ordinance to restrict 
smoking in all enclosed public areas, all places of employment and in certain unenclosed public areas such 
as park grounds and school grounds. The purpose of the restrictions was to ensure that non-smokers may 
breathe air free from the hazardous effects of second hand smoke.  She further noted in recent years, 
manufacturers have developed electronic devices intended to simulate cigarette smoking and designed to 
deliver nicotine, other chemicals and flavors by using a heating element to turn the nicotine, other 
chemicals and flavors into an aerosol, gas or vapor that is inhaled or “vaped” by the user.   
 
President O’Hara reported the United States Food & Drug Administration, the Center for Disease Control 
and Prevention, the World Health Organization, and many leading public health organizations have 
expressed concern about (i) the dramatic increase in the use of e-cigarettes by minors under eighteen (18) 
years of age, (ii) the marketing of e-cigarettes without appropriate health warnings or age-restrictions 
including the marketing of sweet flavors targeted to minors under eighteen (18) years of age, and (iii) the 
lack of clinical studies on the potential health risks posed by e-cigarettes. She further reported E-cigarettes 
remain unregulated at the federal level, leaving states and local governments to adopt their own regulation 
regarding the smoking of e-cigarettes in public places and work places, the sale and distribution of e-
cigarettes to minors under eighteen (18) years of age, and the possession of e-cigarettes by minors under 
eighteen (18) years of age. In an effort to respond to these concerns, several municipalities have amended 
their ordinances to include e-cigarettes in the same manner that cigarettes are regulated/licensed and 
prohibited.  
 
In addition, she reported at the direction of the COW on April 9, 2015, the Village Attorney has prepared 
the attached ordinance to restrict the sale, possession and use of e-cigarettes in the same manner as 
cigarettes are currently regulated and licensed.  This action would align with the Village Board’s original 
intentions and policy, and this amendment will continue to protect minors under 18 and persons in 
proximity of devices in use from the possible risk posed from “second hand” vapors. 
 
As there were no comments, Trustee Meyer moved to approve first reading of the ordinance.  Trustee 
Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer, Ankenman, Christensen and Dewart 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting September 14, 2015 

6 
 

 
15. ITEM #14 – TRUSTEE’S REPORT 

 
There was no Trustee’s report. 
 

16. ITEM #16 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to adjourn the regular meeting.  Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion and the 
motion passed on a unanimous voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
R. Drew Irvin      Aaron Towle 
Village Administrator     Village Clerk 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
            Agenda Item:  7a 
  
 
Subject: 

 
WARRANT REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 16-30, 2015 

 
Action Requested: 

 
APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENTS (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

  
Referred To: 

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
Expenditure of Village funds for payment of invoices in the amount of $292,826.29 for 
September 16-30, 2015. 
 
Total Expenditures of $292,826.29 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
1. Warrant Report for September 16-30, 2015                      $ 292,826.29 (dated 9/28/15) 
 

Note that the warrant report designates those checks issued prior to the Board’s 
formal approval as manual checks “M” on the Warrant Report.  These are checks that 
are prepared in advance of the warrant due to contractual or governmental/payroll tax 
obligations; to obtain a discount; or for extenuating circumstances that may arise.  

 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   
 
Approval of Warrant and Payroll in the total amount of $292,826.29 
 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 9/28/2015 
 



















































  
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
             Agenda Item: 12  

 

Subject: 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR THE RENOVATION 
OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS (Swimming Pool, Wading Pool, 
Equipment Shed and Related Facilities) AT THE LAKE BLUFF PARK 
DISTRICT – BLAIR PARK 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION  (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
LAKE BLUFF PARK DISTRICT (Petitioner) 

 
Referred To:  

 
ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
The Lake Bluff Park District (Petitioner) is proposing remodeling and alterations to the pool and 
changing rooms at Blair Park.  The Park and Pool are operated in a residential zoning district 
under a Special Use Permit that requires changes in site plan to be reviewed by the Architectural 
Board of Review (“ABR”) and Village Board.  Changes of note include rebuilding the wading 
pool in a rectangular shape that is slightly larger to the north, rebuilding the wading pool 
equipment shed with horizontal fiber cement siding, and installing new shade structures.  
 
The ABR reviewed the proposed changes at its September 15, 2015 meeting.  The ABR 
recommended that the Village Board approve the proposed alterations, subject to the condition 
that the proposed fence on the north side of the wading pool and the landscaping return for later 
approval. 
 
In preparation for the Village Board’s consideration of the request, the neighboring property 
owners have been notified of the meeting date and a resolution has been prepared transmitting 
the ABR’s recommendation.  
 
Ron Salski, Executive Director of the Park District, as well as Village Staff, will be in attendance 
at the meeting to answer questions from the Board. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
1. A copy of  a Resolution Approving Alterations for Blair Park; 
2. Drawings of the Proposed Alterations; and 
3. A copy of the September 15, 2015 ABR Staff Report (without Attachments). 
 
ABR’s Recommendation:     Adoption of the Resolution.  
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Adoption of the Resolution. 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 9/28/2015 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN 
FOR THE RENOVATION OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS (SWIMMING POOL, WADING 

POOL, EQUIPMENT SHED AND RELATED FACILITES) AT  
THE LAKE BLUFF PARK DISTRICT - BLAIR PARK  

 
WHEREAS, the Lake Bluff Park District (“Applicant”) operates and maintains the 

existing 140-acre park district area and facilities commonly known as Blair Park, generally 
located south of West Washington Avenue, north of Rockland Road (Illinois Route 176), and 
west of Green Bay Road in Lake Bluff, Illinois (“Property”); and, 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is located in the “E-1,” “R-1,” and "R-2" Single 
Family Residence Districts under the Lake Bluff Zoning Regulations; and, 

WHEREAS, the use, operation, and maintenance of the Subject Property is 
subject to a special use permit granted by the Village (“Special Use Permit") which requires 
changes to the approved site plan to be reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review and 
approved by the Village Board; and, 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested approval of building permits and a 
related site plan for the renovation of certain existing improvements on the Property, including 
alterations to the swimming pool and changing rooms, the rebuilding of the wading pool and 
related equipment shed, and installing new shade structures (“Improvements”), which 
Improvements will require revisions to the approved site plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Improvements are depicted on the plans prepared by the 

Applicant, consisting of 27 pages with a last revision date of 7/22/2015, attached to this 
Resolution as Exhibit A (“Site Plan”); and,  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10-2-8B of the Zoning Regulations, the Village 

of Lake Bluff Architectural Board of Review considered and reviewed the Site Plan at a public 
hearing on September 15, 2015; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10-1-9 of the Zoning Regulations, the Village 

President and Board of Trustees have determined that it would be in the best interest of the 
Village to approve the Site Plan as set forth in the attached Exhibit A and in accordance with, 
and subject to, the conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Resolution and the Zoning 
Regulations.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. 

 
The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of, this Resolution 

as findings of the Village Board. 
 
Section 2. Public Hearing. 
 
A public hearing to consider the Applicant's request for approval of the Site Plan 

was duly noticed pursuant to Section 10-2-8B of the Village's Zoning Regulations and held by 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



2 
 

the Architectural Board of Review on September 15, 2015, on which date the Architectural 
Board of Review recommended that the Village Board approve the Site Plan. 

 
Section 3. Approval of the Site Plan. 
 
In accordance with the standards and procedures in Section 10-2-8D of the 

Zoning Regulations, and subject to and contingent upon the conditions in Section 4 of this 
Resolution, the Site Plan is approved pursuant to Subsection 10-2-8C of the Zoning Regulations 
and the home rule powers of the Village. 

 
Section 4. Conditions. 
 
The approval granted in Section 3 of this Resolution is subject to and contingent 

upon each of the following conditions, restrictions, and provisions: 
 

A. Compliance with the Site Plan.  Except for minor changes and site work 
approved by the Village Building Commissioner or Village Engineer in accordance with 
applicable Village standards, the installation, use, and maintenance of the Improvements on the 
Property must be in substantial compliance with the Site Plan. In the event of any conflict 
between the Special Use Permit and the Site Plan concerning the construction and location of 
the Improvements, the Site Plan will control. 

 
B. Compliance with Applicable Law.  In addition to the other 

specific requirements of this Resolution, the Property must comply at all times with all applicable 
federal, state, and Village statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules, codes, and regulations, 
including without limitation the Village's building, electrical, and fire prevention codes, and the 
Special Use Permit. 

 
C. Fence and Landscaping.  The proposed fence and landscaping 

depicted in the Site Plan are not included in this approval.  The applicant is required to obtain 
separate site plan approval of the proposed fence and landscaping prior to the completion of the 
project. 

 
 Section 5. Effect of Approval. 

 
Pursuant to Section 10-2-8E of the Lake Bluff Zoning Regulations, the approval 

granted pursuant to Section 3 of this Resolution shall not authorize the establishment or 
extension of any use, nor the development, construction, reconstruction, alteration, or moving of 
any buildings or structures, but shall merely authorize the preparation, filing, and processing of 
applications for any permits or approvals that may be required by the codes and ordinances of 
the Village, including, without limitation, building permits. 

 
Section 6. Amendments. 
 
Any amendments to the Site Plan approved in Section 3 of this Resolution may 

be granted only pursuant to the procedures, and subject to the standards and limitations, 
provided in the Zoning Regulations. 

 
Section 7. Effective Date. 

 
This Resolution will be effective only upon passage by the President and Board 



3 
 

of Trustees in the manner required by law.  

 
PASSED this ___ day of ______________, 2015, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Lake Bluff, as follows: 
 
AYES:  () 
  
NAYS:  () 
 
ABSTAIN: () 
 
ABSENT: ()  
 
 
APPROVED this ___ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      _________________________ 

Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Village Clerk 

#36551544_v1 
 

 



 

Exhibit A 

Site Plan  
 

 



cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2CURRENT CONDITIONS















D1

D1

D1

D1

D5

D2

D2

D2D6

D3

D3

D4

D4

D7

D8

D14

D19
D19

13' - 5"

D3

41' - 0 29/32"

1' - 4" 4' - 4" 10' - 0" 5' - 0"

D13 D18 D13

D17D17

D17D17

D17D17
D17D17

D17D17

D17D17

D17D17

D17D17

D18 D13

D19

D14

D33

D33

D33

D33

D33

D33

1'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 2
" 

V
IF

20' - 2" VIF

8'
 -

 0
" 

V
IF

12' - 0" VIF 3' - 0" VIF

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

7
/1

0
/2

0
1
5
 8

:4
2
:3

3
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it
 T

e
m

p
\

2
0
1
4
\

1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
D

a
n

ie
l.P

u
rp

u
ra

.r
v
t

AD1.1.0A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

S
IT

E
 A

N
D

 O
V

E
R

A
LL

 D
E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

S
 (

B
A

S
E
 B

ID
)

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

N

GENERAL DEMO NOTES
1 WRAP ALL EXPOSED PIPING UNDER LAVATORIES WITH PROTECTIVE INSULATION FOR PROTECTION OF

PEOPLE IN WHEEL CHAIRS

2 IF REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACT, PERFORM ASBESTOS ABATEMENT OR OTHER HAZARDOUS OR TOXIC
SUBSTANCE REMOVAL WORK INDICATED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS AND WITH
AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION, PRIOR TO STARTING GENERAL DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES

3 DO NOT BLOCK EXITS AND EXIT PASSAGE WAYS.  MAINTAIN EXITS AS INDICATED, AND IF NOT
INDICATED, MAINTAIN AT LEAST TWO EXITS OUT OF ALL AREAS IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL
JURISDICTION, AT ALL TIMES DURING DEMOLITION.

4 PRIOR TO ANY DEMOLITION OPERATION, SHORE AND PROTECT ADJACENT BUILDING AREA SO AS TO
MAINTAIN THE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY AND STABILITY OF THE PORTIONS OF THE BUILDING TO
REMAIN.

5 PROTECT ADJACENT SURFACES TO REMAIN.  REPAIR DAMAGED SURFACES SCHEDULED TO REMAIN
USING MATERIALS AND METHODS TO MATCH EXISTING CONSTRUCTION.

6 REMOVE ALL WALLS AND PARTITIONS SCHEDULED TO BE REMOVED INCLUDING ALL INCIDENTAL
ACCESSORIES THEREIN, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL AND PLUMBING
APPURTENANCES AND ALL CONDUIT, WIRING AND PIPING.

7 REMOVE CONDUIT, WIRING AND PIPING NOT SCHEDULED TO BE RE-ROUTED, TO NEAREST POINT
CONCEALED BEHIND CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN, AND CAP ENDS.

8 REMOVE ALL DEBRIS FROM SITE ON A DAILY BASIS AND DISPOSE OF LEGALLY

9 DASHED LINES INDICATE MATERIAL TO BE REMOVED.  REMOVE CONSTRUCTION UP TO DEFINED
LIMITS.  REFER TO SHEET KEY NOTES FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION

10 FOR DETAILED MECHANICAL DEMOLITION NOTES, REFER TO MECHANICAL DRAWINGS

11 FOR DETAILED PLUMBING DEMOLITION NOTES, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

12 FOR DETAILED ELECTRICAL DEMOLITION NOTES, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

 1" = 10'-0"
J1 DEMOLITION SITE PLAN

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN

KEYNOTES - SHEET-NO D15

KEY
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION

D1 REMOVE WOOD SUNSHADE CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING ALL FOUNDATIONS.

D2 REMOVE CONCRETE POOL DECK IN ITS ENTIRETY.

D3 REMOVE CHAIN LINK FENCING, INCLUDING ALL CONC. PIERS.

D4 REMOVE ORNAMENTAL FENCING.

D5 REMOVE CONC. WADING POOL IN ITS ENTIRETY. SEE M,E,P, SHEETS FOR ADD'L
INFORMATION.

D6 EXISTING PLANTING AREA TO REMAIN.

D7 SAWCUT AND REMOVE PORTION OF CONCRETE DECK.

D8 EXISTING SIDEWALKS TO REMAIN.

D13 REMOVE RAISED CONCRETE LOCKER BASE.  PREP FLOOR FOR NEW FINISH.

D14 REMOVE WOOD FENCE AND ALL HARDWARE, INCLUDING ALL CONC. PIERS.

D17 REMOVE EXISTING EPOXY FLOORING AND BASE, PREP FLOOR READY FOR NEW WORK

D18 PORTION OF EXISTING LOCKER BASE TO REMAIN

D19 REMOVE PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB.

D33 REMOVE DOOR, FRAME, AND ALL ASSOCIATED HARDWARE.  PREP OPENING READY TO
RECEIVE NEW WORK

1

6/
1/

15
 

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PE
RM

IT/
BI

D
 

7/
22

/1
5 

  I
SS

UE
D

 F
O

R 
PE

RM
IT



8795 SF

Room
A145

1699 SF

WADING POOL
A148

6'
 -

 8
"

6'
 -

 0
"

57
' -

 1
0"

12
' -

 8
"

72' - 10"

10
' -

 2
"

57
' -

 1
0"

12
0'

 -
 6

"

EXISTING BUILDING

A1.2.0A

M8

63
' -

 1
0"

0"

6"

12"

18"

ROLLBACK AREA

A0.0.2A

E1

55' - 1 1/2"

11
' -

 4
"

CONTROL POINT

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

7
/1

0
/2

0
1
5
 8

:4
2
:2

3
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it
 T

e
m

p
\

2
0
1
4
\

1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
D

a
n

ie
l.P

u
rp

u
ra

.r
v
t

A0.0.1A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

TU
R

A
L 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

KEYNOTES - REFERENCE

KEY
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

N

KEYNOTES - SHEET

KEY
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION

 1" = 10'-0"
E1 OVERALL SITE PLAN

6/
1/

15
 

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PE
RM

IT/
BI

D
 

7/
22

/1
5 

  I
SS

UE
D

 F
O

R 
PE

RM
IT



1" RADIUS

6"
4"

4"

PLANTING BED
-BY OWNER

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

5"

WELDED WIRE
FABRIC

TOPSOIL
-BY OWNER

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE

COMPACTED
GRAVEL

8" 7"

3"

2"
 M

IN
.

1" RADIUS

TURF

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

WELDED WIRE
FABRIC

TOPSOIL

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE

COMPACTED
GRAVEL

6"
2"

1"

6"
5"

3"

8" 7"

2"
 M

IN
. EXISTING CONC. SLAB

REINFORCING, 18" LONG
#4 BARS @ 32" O.C.

9" 9"

WELDED WIRE FABRIC

SEALANT

2"
 M

IN
.

WELDED WIRE FABRIC

CONTROL JOINT, TOOLED
1/4 DEPTH OF SLAB.

6"
5"

CONCRETE POOL DECK

COMPACTED GRANULAR
FILL

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

2"
 M

IN
.

EQUALLY SPACED

10' - 0" MAX.

BOTTOM RAIL

BLACK VINYL COATED FABRIC AND POSTS

6'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 0
"

3'
 -

 0
"

4'
 -

 0
"

2"
 M

A
X

.

WELDED WIRE FABRIC

EXPANSION JOINT

6"
5"

CONCRETE POOL DECK

COMPACTED GRANULAR
FILL

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

3/4"

2"
 M

IN
.

0"

6"

12"

18"

ROLLBACK AREA

10
 E

Q
. S

P
A

C
E

S

5 EQ. SPACES

2 
E

Q
. S

P
A

C
E

S

2 EQ. SPACES 2 EQ. SPACES

E8

A0.0.2A

E8

A0.0.2AE8

A0.0.2A

N8

A0.0.2A

E8

A0.0.2A

N15

A0.0.2A

EJ

EJ

EJ

EJ

EJ

EJ EJ

EJ

A17

A17

A27

A17

A17

5' - 3 1/2" 15' - 0" 30' - 0" 15' - 0" 3' - 8 1/2"

37
' -

 4
"

6'
 -

 8
"

63
' -

 1
0"

12
' -

 8
"

A28

A28

A28

A29A29

R
 3

4'
 - 

6 
1/

8"

R
 2

7'
 -

 1
0 

1/
8"

36
' -

 0
 1

/1
6"

17' - 8 25/32" 12' - 3 7/32"

A40

A40

A40

A40

EJ EJ

ALIGN
POSTS
WITH
CONTROL
JOINT

SLOPE

MAX 1" PER 10'

SLOPE

MAX 1" PER 10'

S
LO

P
E

M
A

X
 1

" 
P

E
R

 1
0'

S
LO

P
E

M
A

X
 1

" 
P

E
R

 1
0'

ALL CONCRETE DECKS
TO HAVE BROOM, NON-SLIP
FINISH

ALL CONCRETE DECKS
TO HAVE BROOM, NON-SLIP
FINISH

ALL CONCRETE DECKS
TO HAVE BROOM, NON-SLIP
FINISH

ALL CONCRETE DECKS
TO HAVE BROOM, NON-SLIP
FINISH

4X POST WIDTH, OR PER MANUF RECOMMENDATIONS

3'
 -

 6
" 

M
IN

.
3'

 -
 6

" 
T

Y
P

.

8' - 0" MAX. PANEL LENGTH

2"

4" MAX O.C.

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR FENCE SIZING

6" 6"

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

7
/1

0
/2

0
1
5
 8

:4
2
:2

5
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it
 T

e
m

p
\

2
0
1
4
\

1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
D

a
n

ie
l.P

u
rp

u
ra

.r
v
t

A0.0.2A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

S
IT

E
 D

E
TA

IL
S

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
E8 SIDEWALK AT PLANTING BED

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
N8 SIDEWALK AT TURF

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
N15 EXISTING SLAB DETAIL

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
E15 CONTROL JOINT DETAIL

 1/2" = 1'-0"
J8 FENCE DETAIL

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
J15 EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL

 1/8" = 1'-0"
E1 ENLARGED WADING POOL PLAN

N

KEYNOTES - SHEET

KEY
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION

A17 NEW 6'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE TO MATCH EXISTING

A27 EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE TO REMAIN

A28 NEW PLANTING BED

A29 EXISTING TURF TO REMAIN.

A40 NEW SUNPORT SINGLE POST CANTILEVER PYRAMID SHADE CANOPY. PROVIDE CONCRETE
PIER AS REQUIRED BY MANUFACTURER FOR LOCAL WIND LOACLS. COORDINATE EXACT
LOCATION IN FIELD.

 1/2" = 1'-0"
1 INTERIOR FENCE DETAIL

6/
1/

15
 

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PE
RM

IT/
BI

D
 

7/
22

/1
5 

  I
SS

UE
D

 F
O

R 
PE

RM
IT



1699 SF

WADING POOL
A148

MULCH BED

MULCH BED

CHAIN LINK FENCE

EXISTING TURF

TO BE FENCED IN FOR
WADING POOL

EXISTING TELEPHONE
SERVICE

27' - 6"

37
' -

 4
"

PROVIDE: (6) BLACK EYED SUSANS
 AND (7) DAYLILLYS PER BED.

PROVIDE: (6) BLACK EYED SUSANS
 AND (7) DAYLILLYS PER BED.

PROVIDE: (10) BLACK EYED SUSANS
 AND (11) DAYLILLYS.

PROPOSED EVERGREEN SHRUBS
(DENSE YEW  -  30" MIN. AT 42" O.C.)
COUNT - 57

PROPOSED MIXED PERENIAL PLANTINGS
(LITTLE SUZY BLACK EYED SUSAN - 1 GAL. SPACED AT18"
HAPPY RETURNS DAYLILLY  - 1 GAL. SPACED AT 18" )

CHAIN LINK FENCE

NOTE: ALL LANDSCAPING TO BE PROVIDED BY PARK DISTRICT

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

EXISTING LANDSCAPING
TO BE DEMOLISHED

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

6
/1

/1
5

IS
S
U

E
D

 F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

/B
ID

7
/8

/1
5

IS
S
U

E
D

 F
O

R
 I
D

P
H

8
/2

4
/1

5
IS

S
U

E
D

 F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 R
E
S
P

O
N

S
E

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

9
/3

/2
0
1
5
 1

:2
9
:2

6
 P

M

C
:\

U
se

rs
\

h
e

a
th

e
r.

ju
h

l\
D

e
sk

to
p

\
R

e
v
it
 L

o
c

a
l 
F
ile

s\
1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
H

e
a

th
e

r.
J
u

h
l.
rv

t

A0.0.3A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

LA
N

D
S
C

A
P

E
 P

LA
N

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

 1" = 10'-0"
E12 LANDSCAPE PLAN

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

PLANTING LEGENDA12

 1" = 10'-0"
E1 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN



GENERAL
MANAGER

A135

Option Conflict

MENS
SHOWER

A126Option Conflict

MENS WET
TOILET
A125

Option Conflict

DRY TOILET
A124

31 SF

JAN.
A121

WOMEN
A122

POOL
MANAGER

A123

FIRST AID
A120

POOL STOR.
A129

Option Conflict

WET TOILET
A113

Option Conflict

DRY TOILET
A112

Option Conflict

WOMANS
LOCKER RM

A111

207 SF

WOMENS
SHOWER

A115

CORRIDOR
A119

OFFICE
A134

ENTRY
A128

Option Conflict

MENS
LOCKER
ROOM
A127

16 SF

STOR.
A114

MENS
A151

10
' -

 0
"

5'
 -

 9
"

4'
 -

 3
"

22' - 4"

18' - 7" 3' - 0"

5'
 -

 6
"

4' - 0"

14
' -

 3
"

7'
 -

 1
"

18' - 7" 3' - 0"
8'

 -
 5

"
8"

10
' -

 5
"

29' - 11"

6' - 0"

3'
 -

 4
"

2'
 -

 1
0 

3/
32

"

4' - 0"

2'
 -

 0
"

HC

HC

A6

A6

A1.2.0A

M8
FILTER
ROOM
A154

A21A21

A21A21

A21A21

A21A21

A21A21

A21A21

A21A21

A22A22

A22A22

A22A22

A22A22

A22A22

A22A22

A22A22

A23A23
A23A23

A23A23 A23A23

A23A23

A23A23

20' - 8"

6'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0" 16' - 2"

28
' -

 1
"

14
' -

 1
"

7' - 6"

9' - 0"

4'
 -

 0
"

17
' -

 4
"

12
' -

 1
1"

9' - 9 1/2"

13
' -

 2
"

3' - 0"

A1

A1.2.0A

A127-1

A126-1

A124-1
A121-1

A111-1

A115-1
081113.A05

081113.A01

A21

A1.2.0A

A23A23

EXISTING SHOWER CURBS

8' - 0"

1'
 -

 6
"

8' - 0"

1'
 -

 6
"

2' - 0"

4'
 -

 0
"

2'
 -

 0
"

4' - 0"

ASK-09

1

A1.1.0A

2

DOOR LEGEND

F - # FLUSH

MATERIAL LEGEND

HM - HOLLOW METAL
PT - PAINT

FRAME LEGEND

S-# SINGLE

HARDWARE  LEGEND

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR HARDWARE
ALLOWANCE

2"
SEE DOOR
SCHEDULE

2"

S
E

E
 D

O
O

R
 S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

S-1

SEE DOOR
SCHEDULE

F

C1030.101.006

081113.A05

079200.A02

5 
3/

4"

079200.A02

J11

081113.C01

FLATHEAD EXPANSION
ANCHOR

2" SEE SCHED.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
A

LL

C1030.101.005

EXISTING CMU OR
CONCRETE WALL

079200.A02079200.A02

5 3/4"

S
E

E
 S

C
H

E
D

.

M
A

S
O

N
R

Y
 O

P
E

N
IN

G

2"

EXTERIOR THRESHOLD (ADA ACCESSIBLE)

FLOOR FINISH

DOOR

ALUM. THRESHOLD
SET IN SEALANT
AT EXTERIOR
DOORS ONLY.

DOOR SWEEP AT
EXTERIOR SIDE
(WHERE SPECIFIED)

1/
2"

SLOPED TOP

PROVIDE LOCK HASP

EXISTING CONCRETE BASE TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONCRETE BASE TO REMAIN

4"
6'

 -
 0

"
4"

6'
 -

 8
"

PROVIDE 1 HOOK

1' - 0"

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

7
/1

0
/2

0
1
5
 8

:4
2
:2

7
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it
 T

e
m

p
\

2
0
1
4
\

1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
D

a
n

ie
l.P

u
rp

u
ra

.r
v
t

A1.1.0A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 (

B
A

S
E
 B

ID
)

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

KEYNOTES - REFERENCE

KEY
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

079200.A02 SEALANT

081113.A01 HOLLOW METAL DOOR

081113.A05 HOLLOW METAL FRAME

081113.C01 JAMB ANCHOR

KEYNOTES - SHEET

KEY
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION

A6 NEW WOOD BENCH.

A21 NEW EPOXY FLOOR AND INTEGRAL BASE.

A22 PAINT ALL WALLS AND CEILING.

A23 EXISTING PLUMBING FIXTURES AND PARTITIONS TO REMAIN.

J11 GROUT SOLID

GENERAL FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1 REFER TO PARTITION TYPES FOR THICKNESS OF WALLS AND PARTITIONS.

2 WALL AND PARTITION DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO FINISHED FACE OF WALL

3 DIMENSIONS FOR AREAS DRAWN AT A LARGER SCALE ARE SHOWN ON ENLARGED SCALE PLANS.  SEE A-4
SERIES DRAWINGS

4 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE LAID OUT RADIALLY, ARE DIMENSIONED
BY RADIAN (DEGREES) FROM THE NEAREST GRID LINES.

5 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE SHOWN TO BE ON A GRID LINE OR
IMMEDIATELY NEXT TO A GRID LINE SHALL BE LOCATED PARALLEL WITH THE GRID LINE WITH THE FACE OF
THE WALL 1" AWAY FROM THE LEG OF THE STEEL JOIST.  (SEE DETAIL A--/A2.--)

6 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALL AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE LAID OUT CONCENTRICALLY ARE
DIMENSIONED FROM THE NEAREST GRID AND SHALL BE LAID OUT ALONG THE ESTABLISHED RADIUS.

7 WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE LAID OUT ON A RADIUS, ARE SHOWN TO BE
PERPENDICULAR (--) OR AT SOME ANGLE ) --) TO THE ADJOINING WALLS OR PERPEDICULAR TO A GRID LINE
(--).

23 USE OF SPECIFICATION SECTION NUMBERS WITHIN KEY NOTES IS MADE SOLELY FOR CONVENIENCE IN
COORDINATION AND WITHOUT LIMITATION.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE
WORK IN ACCORDANCE TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THEIR ENTIRETY

24 USE OF MANUFACTURER'S CONTENT WITHIN THE DRAWINGS IS MADE SOLELY FOR CONVENIENCE IN
ILLUSTRATING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE
PRODUCTS SPECIFIED AND APPROVED THROUGH THE SUBMITTAL PROCESS.

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"
A1 PARTIAL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ROOM SCHEDULE - FINISH

ROOM
NUMBER ROOM NAME

FLOOR BASE NORTH WALL EAST WALL WEST WALL SOUTH WALL CEILING

REMARKSMATERIAL FINISH MATERIAL FINISH  MATERIAL  FINISH MATERIAL FINISH MATERIAL  FINISH  MATERIAL  FINISH  MATERIAL  FINISH

Level 1

A111 WOMANS LOCKER RM CONC. ERF CMU ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A112 DRY TOILET CONC ERF CMU ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A113 WET TOILET CONC ERF CMU ERF CMU EX-CT CMU EX-CT CMU EX-CT CMU EX-CT GB PT

A114 STOR. CONC - CMU - CMU - CMU - CMU - CMU - GB -

A115 WOMENS SHOWER CONC. ERF CMU ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A121 JAN. CONC. - CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A124 DRY TOILET CONC ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A125 MENS WET TOILET CONC ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A126 MENS SHOWER ERF ERF CMU ERF CMU PT CMU PTT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT 1

A127 MENS LOCKER ROOM ERF ERF CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT CMU PT GB PT

A152 CONCESSIONS

A154 FILTER ROOM

ROOM FINISH ABBREVIATIONS

CMU-# CONCRETE MASORY UNIT

CONC-# EXPOSED CONCRETE

CT-# CERAMIC TILE

EP-# EPOXY PAINT

ERF-# EPOXY RESINOUS FLOORING

RF-# RESINOUS FLOORING

FINISHES- BASIS OF DESIGN
FRP – MARLITE DESIGNER WALL SYSTEM - ARTIZAN FRP
TILE – CROSSVILLE – COLOR BLOCKS PRICE GROUP 1
LOCKERS- PLASTIC LOCKERS (3 TIER)
TOILET PARTITIONS- PLASTIC 5'-0" HEIGHT
FLOOR- TROWLED EPOXY FLOORING WITH INTEGRAL 4" BASE

GENERAL ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE NOTES

3 FOR FINISH MATERIAL WHEN MORE THAN ONE MATERIAL OCCURS THE FINISH IS INDICATED THUS "/"

4 START POINT FOR ACT CEILINGS TO BE CENTER OF ROOM UNLESS NOTED BY A START POINT.

5 SEE INTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR LOCATIONS OF GROUND-FACED BLOCK, GLASS BLOCK AND PAINT ACCENTS.

6 SEE PARTITION TYPES FOR ADDITIONAL FINISH INFORMATION

7 PAINT ALL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR HOLLOW METAL DOORS, WINDOWS AND FRAMES.

8 PROVIDE TRANSITION STRIP AT ALL LOCATIONS WHERE FLOORING MATERIAL CHANGES

9 EXTEND SCHEDULED PAINT ON WALLS UP TO 1'-0" ABOVE THE FINISHED CEILING.  IN ROOMS NOT SCHEDULED TO RECEIVE A CEILING,
EXTEND SCHEDULED PAINT UP THE ENTIRE HEIGHT OF THE PARTITION, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

10 AT ALL EXPOSED AREAS, PAINT ALL WALLS, STRUCTURE, INCLUDING CONCRETE, METAL DECK, STEEL BEAMS, COLUMNS, PIPING,
CONDUIT, DUCTWORK AND OTHER EQUIPMENT ETC.

11 DO NOT PAINT PRE-FINISHED ACOUSTICAL DECK

12 DO NOT PAINT DOOR AND FRAME FIRE RATING LABELS.

14 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, PROVIDE 4" HIGH RUBBER BASE.

15 PROVIDE LEVEL 4 DRYWALL FINISH AT ALL LOCATIONS SCHEDULED TO RECEIVE PAINT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE REMARKS

1 ALTERNATE- PROVIDE TILE AT ALL SHOWER WALLS UP TO 7'-0" HEIGHT

DOOR AND FRAME SCHEDULE

WTWT ROOM NAME

DOOR FRAME DETAIL

LABEL
(MIN.) SIGN

H'WARE
SET REMARKSLEAF WIDTH HEIGHT  TYPE  MATL FINISH  GLASS TYPE MATL FINISH GLASS HEAD JAMB JAMB

THRESH
OLD

Level 1

A111-1 WOMANS LOCKER RM 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

A115-1 WOMENS SHOWER 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

A121-1 MENS LOCKER ROOM 1 2' - 6" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

A124-1 MENS SHOWER 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

A126-1 MENS SHOWER 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

A127-1 ENTRY 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" F HM PT - S-1 HM PT - A17 E17 E17 A21 0 - 1

 12" = 1'-0"

DOOR SCHEDULE LEGEND

 3" = 1'-0"
E17 DOOR JAMB DETAIL

 3" = 1'-0"
A17 DOOR HEAD DETAIL

 6" = 1'-0"
A21 DOOR THRESHOLD DETAIL

 1/2" = 1'-0"
2 TRIPLE TIER LOCKER ELEVATION

6/
1/

15
 

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PE
RM

IT/
BI

D
 

7/
22

/1
5 

  I
SS

UE
D

 F
O

R 
PE

RM
IT



A4.1.0

1

2

3

4

A11

A1.2.0A

TYP.
20' - 0 1/2"

EXISTING FOUNDATION

5" CONCRETE SLAB

EXISTING FOOTING

A1.2.0A

H8

A1.2.0AH1

8" 19' - 0" 8"

8"
8'

 -
 8

"

A1

A1.2.0A

20' - 4"

L19

A1.3.0A

NEW FOUNDATION

8" TYP.

A1.2.0A

D21

A1.2.0A

D21

A31

A32

A21

A1.2.0A

A11

A1.2.0A

TYP.

EXISTING DOUBLE
WYTHE BRICK WALL

NEW WOOD STUD WALL
WITH CEMENT BOARD
SIDING

5" CONCRETE SLAB

A1.2.0A

H8

A1.2.0AH1

A1

A1.2.0A A30

A21

A1.2.0A

(2)2X4

FOUNDATION
WALL

2X4

EXISTING FOUNDATION WALL

3'
 -

 8
"

@ 24" O.C.

3/4"

8"

8"

1' - 4"

2X8 @ 16" O.C.

3/4"

7'
 -

 0
"

2X8

061000.C02

042000.D38

061000.A01

074646.A00

072500.A00

061600.B02

061000.A01

061000.A01

076200.A01

074646.C02

061000.A01

061600.B10

075323.A00

061000.A01 2X8

A1.2.0A

H15

107' - 0"

100' - 6"

A1.2.0A

A15

A1.2.0A

D15

O.H.

A11

A1.2.0A

A1

A1.2.0A

076200.A01

077100.A08

074646.A00

081113.A01

075323.A00

033000.A07

033000.A06

074646.C024"6"
9'

 -
 0

"

EXISTING DOUBLE
WYTHE BRICK
WALL

074646.A00

033000.A07

033000.A06

074646.C02074646.C02

6'
 -

 6
"

LOUVER- SEE
MECHANICAL
SHEETS FOR SIZE

4"

(2)2X8

EXISTING FOUNDATION WALL

4'
 -

 0
"

(BEYOND)

8"

8"

1' - 4"

7'
 -

 2
"

6'
 -

 1
0"

HOLLOW METAL DOOR

0"

081113.A01

033000.A08

033000.A07

033000.A06

074646.A00

074646.C02

076200.A01

061600.B10

075323.A00

061000.A01

061000.B09

061000.A01 2X8  @ 16" O.C.

A1.2.0A

A15

107' - 0"

A1.2.0A

H15

A11

A1.2.0A

A1

A1.2.0A

R1

R2

R3

9'
 -

 5
 1

/2
"

20' - 5"

S
LO

P
E

R6

A21

A1.2.0A

R5

R4

075323.A00

061600.B10

076200.A08

075323.A00

061000.A01

4x10 LEDGER (D.F.-L NO. 2) W/
5/8"� HILTI HIT-HY 70 ADHESIVE
ANCHORS W/6" EMBED @ 16"
O.C.

061000.B09

SIMPSON LSSU

R7

FACE OF EXISTING

#4 DOWELS x 2'-6" @ 12" O.C.
DOWEL INTO EXISTING

FOUNDATION WALL USING
HILTI HIT-HY200 INJECTION

ADHESIVE ANCHOR SYSTEM
W/ 6" EMBEDMENT

PREFORMED JOINT AT
EXISTING

T
/F

T
G

.4'
-0

" 
(M

IN
.)

B
E

LO
W

 G
R

A
D

E

1'
-0

"1'-6"

EQ.EQ. 8"

1/2" COMPRESSIBLE JOINT
FILLER CONT. @ PERIMETER
OF SLAB

2 #5 CONT.
(T & B)

2x STUDS
SEE PLAN AND
WALL DETAILS

WALL SHEATHING
SEE WALL DETAILS

FINISHED GRADE OR PAVEMENT
(SEE CIVIL DWG'S.)

F
IN

. F
LR

.
S

E
E

 P
LA

N

CONT. 2x PLATE W/ 5/8"� ANC.
BOLTS W/6" EMBED. + 2" HK. @ 4'-0

O.C.

076200.A01

061600.B10

061600.B10

075323.A00

074646.C02

074646.A01

081113.A05

061000.A01

077100.A03

075323.A00

061600.B10

075323.B02

061600.B10

072500.A00

061000.A01

IL
 #

 1
8

4
-0

0
0
3

5
0

P
R

O
F
E

S
S
IO

N
A

L 
D

E
S
IG

N
 F

IR
M

IS
S
U

A
N

C
E

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

N
O

.
D

A
TE

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

1

R

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

P

O

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1814 15 16 17 19 20 21 22 23 24

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

© 2014 FGM Architects Inc.

EXPIRATION DATE:

C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

2
0

1
4

 F
G

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
, 

IN
C

.

O
A

K
 B

R
O

O
K

C
H

IC
A

G
O

O
'F

A
LL

O
N

F
G

M
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TS
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

TE

7
/1

0
/2

0
1
5
 8

:4
2
:3

0
 A

M

C
:\

R
e

v
it
 T

e
m

p
\

2
0
1
4
\

1
5
-1

9
6
6
.0

1
_
La

k
e

 B
lu

ff
 A

q
u

a
ti
c

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

te
r 

R
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s_

C
e

n
tr

a
l_

2
0
1
4
_
D

a
n

ie
l.P

u
rp

u
ra

.r
v
t

A1.2.0A
15-1966.01

LA
K

E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

O
O

L 
A

N
D

 S
U

N
R

IS
E
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
E
N

O
V

A
TI

O
N

S
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
 P

A
R

K
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

F
IL

TE
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
, 

S
E
C

TI
O

N
S
, 

A
N

D
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

3
5

5
 W

. 
W

A
S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 A
V

E
. 
LA

K
E
 B

LU
F
F
, 
IL

 6
0

0
4

4

A
u

th
o

r

C
h

e
c

k
e

r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

r

Is
su

e
D

a
te

KEYNOTES - SHEET

KEY
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION

A30 NEW 4" CONCRETE WALK

A31 PROVIDE SLEEVES AT POOL PIPING THROUGH NEW FOUNDATION WALL

A32 PROVIDE 8" DEPRESSION IN FOUNDATION WALL AT DOOR OPENING.

R1 NEW ALUMINUM COPING

R2 NEW EPDM MEMBRANE

R3 NEW PRE-FINISHED GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

R4 EXTEND EPDM MEPBRANE OVER TOP OF EXISTING MASONRY WALL.

R5 NEW METAL COPING.  PROVIDE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING.  ANCHOR WITH TAPCONS @ 16"
O.C. INTO EACH WYTHE OF EXISTING BRICK.

R6 NEW FLUE THRU ROOF.  SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
PROVIDE FLASHING AT EPDM PENETRATION

R7 EXISTING MASONRY WALL

GENERAL FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1 REFER TO PARTITION TYPES FOR THICKNESS OF WALLS AND PARTITIONS.

2 WALL AND PARTITION DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO FINISHED FACE OF WALL

3 DIMENSIONS FOR AREAS DRAWN AT A LARGER SCALE ARE SHOWN ON ENLARGED SCALE PLANS.  SEE A-4
SERIES DRAWINGS

4 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE LAID OUT RADIALLY, ARE DIMENSIONED
BY RADIAN (DEGREES) FROM THE NEAREST GRID LINES.

5 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE SHOWN TO BE ON A GRID LINE OR
IMMEDIATELY NEXT TO A GRID LINE SHALL BE LOCATED PARALLEL WITH THE GRID LINE WITH THE FACE OF
THE WALL 1" AWAY FROM THE LEG OF THE STEEL JOIST.  (SEE DETAIL A--/A2.--)

6 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, WALL AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE LAID OUT CONCENTRICALLY ARE
DIMENSIONED FROM THE NEAREST GRID AND SHALL BE LAID OUT ALONG THE ESTABLISHED RADIUS.

7 WALLS AND PARTITIONS WHICH ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE LAID OUT ON A RADIUS, ARE SHOWN TO BE
PERPENDICULAR (--) OR AT SOME ANGLE ) --) TO THE ADJOINING WALLS OR PERPEDICULAR TO A GRID LINE
(--).

23 USE OF SPECIFICATION SECTION NUMBERS WITHIN KEY NOTES IS MADE SOLELY FOR CONVENIENCE IN
COORDINATION AND WITHOUT LIMITATION.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE
WORK IN ACCORDANCE TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THEIR ENTIRETY

24 USE OF MANUFACTURER'S CONTENT WITHIN THE DRAWINGS IS MADE SOLELY FOR CONVENIENCE IN
ILLUSTRATING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE
PRODUCTS SPECIFIED AND APPROVED THROUGH THE SUBMITTAL PROCESS.

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"
M1 FILTER BUILDING FOUNDATION PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"
M8 FILTER BUILDING PLAN

 3/4" = 1'-0"
A11 FILTER BUILDING SECTION 1

 1/4" = 1'-0"
H8 FILTER BUILDING NORTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"
H1 FILTER BUILDING EAST ELEVATION

N

 3/4" = 1'-0"
A1 FILTER BUILDING SECTION 3

 1/4" = 1'-0"
M15 FILTER BUILDING ROOF PLAN

KEYNOTES - REFERENCE

KEY
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

033000.A06 CONCRETE FOOTING

033000.A07 CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL

033000.A08 CONCRETE SLABS-ON-GRADE

042000.D38 ANCHOR BOLT

061000.A01 FRAMING WITH DIMENSION LUMBER

061000.B09 JOIST HANGER

061000.C02 SILL-SEALER GASKETS; CLOSED-CELL NEOPRENE FOAM

061600.B02 WALL SHEATHING

061600.B10 ROOF SHEATHING

072500.A00 WEATHER BARRIERS

074646.A00 FIBER-CEMENT SIDING SYSTEM

074646.A01 FIBER-CEMENT SIDING PANEL

074646.C02 FIBER CEMENT TRIM

075323.A00 ETHYLENE-PROPYLENE-DIENE-MONOMER (EPDM) ROOFING

075323.B02 SHEET FLASHING

076200.A01 GUTTER

076200.A08 COPING

077100.A03 CANTED ROOF EDGE FASCIA AND OR GRAVEL STOP

077100.A08 DOWNSPOUT

081113.A01 HOLLOW METAL DOOR

081113.A05 HOLLOW METAL FRAME

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
H15 COPING DETAIL

 3/4" = 1'-0"
D21 SLAB DETAIL AT EXIST FDN

 1" = 1'-0"
D15 FOUNDATION DETAIL

WEST ELEVATION IS SIMILAR

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
A15 DETAIL AT GUTTER

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"
A21 GRAVEL STOP

6/
1/

15
 

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R 

PE
RM

IT/
BI

D
 

7/
22

/1
5 

  I
SS

UE
D

 F
O

R 
PE

RM
IT



















V I L L A G E  O F  L A K E  B L U F F  
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Chairman Hunter and Members of the Architectural Board of Review  
 
FROM: Mike Croak, Building Codes Supervisor 
 
DATE:  September 11, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #4 – A Public Hearing to Consider a Site Plan to Review Changes to Blair Park 

Pool at 355 W Washington Avenue 
 

 
The Park District of Lake Bluff is proposing remodeling and alterations to the pool and changing rooms at Blair 
Park.  The Park and Pool are operated in a residential zoning district under a Special Use Permit that requires 
changes in site plan to be reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review.  Changes of note to the ABR include 
rebuilding the wading pool with a rectangular footprint that is slightly larger to the north, rebuilding the wading pool 
equipment shed with horizontal fiber cement siding, and installing new shade structures. 

 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the ABR conduct a public hearing to consider the modifications to the site plan, appropriately 
question the Petitioner as needed, entertain public comments and questions from the petitioner and make one of the 
following recommendations regarding the site plan: 
 

 Recommend that the Village Board approve  the proposed site plan as presented or with conditions; 
 Recommend that the Village Board deny the proposed site plan; or 
 Request the petitioner to provide additional information for the ABR’s consideration. 

 
 
Ron Salski, Executive Director of the Lake Bluff Park District, will be in attendance at Tuesday’s meeting to respond 
to questions from the ABR.  If you should have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me at 
847-283-6885. 
 
Attachments: 

 Color Rending of Wading Pool 
 Survey of Property 
 Architectural Drawings 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

                                               Agenda Item: 13 

 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
(GovITC Consortium) REGARDING INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
AND EQUIPMENT 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION 

 
Originated By: 

 
VILLAGE STAFF 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
 
In January 2014 the Village Board authorized an Information Technology (“IT”) services contract with 
InterDev LLC following a joint RFI/RFP process with the Villages of Buffalo Grove, Glenview, Kenilworth, 
and Lincolnshire; as announced at that time, the municipalities’ goals were twofold: (i) move to a common 
service provider immediately to begin achieving the added value from a shared support model more quickly, 
and (ii) research and plan for an IT consortium.  Over the past year the communities have worked together to 
develop an IT consortium model and now the group is recommending formation of a separate 
intergovernmental entity (GovITC) in order to achieve:  

 Economies of Scale - IT assets can be jointly purchased, reducing individual community expenses and 
risks;   

 Improved Vendor Management – Formal meetings will be scheduled with the IT services vendor to 
review and plan projects and schedules, monitor performance and service level agreement metrics.  The 
vendor would also be measured on progress for transitioning and further consolidating the 
environments; and 

 Strategic Planning - alignment of priorities and projects across multiple complex environments, as well 
as growth management of the Consortium. 

There is no immediate additional cost for formalizing GovITC.  Functions typically associated with a separate 
entity, such as budgeting and auditing, are expected to be handled by the Consortium officers for the next few 
years until such time that the Consortium would grow and may require outside additional resources.  As the 
Consortium begins to strategically plan, some joint purchases may be recommended in the next year in order to 
reduce duplication of equipment and maintenance (reduce costs) and work towards common standards for 
assets. The working group has identified a handful of projects to pursue once the formal consortium structure is 
in place including a shared offsite backup solution, shared email archiving, improved vendor management, and 
shared network monitoring.   

Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. Resolution Authorizing an IGA Regarding IT Services & Equipment (with Agreement & By-Laws); 
2. Current Agreement with InterDev; and 
3. Key Terms of the By-Laws.  

Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  Consideration of the Resolution. 

 
Date Referred to Village Board: 

 
9/28/2015  

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
(GovITC Consortium) REGARDING INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to participate in a consortium to develop and 
share information technology services, staffing, and equipment with other municipalities in order 
to operate more efficiently, reduce risk, and provide for a collaborative environment for 
innovation and continuous improvement; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to participate in the consortium, which will be 
known as GovITC (“GovITC”), as a charter member along with the Villages of Buffalo Grove, 
Glenview, Kenilworth, and Lincolnshire; and, 

 WHEREAS, the GovITC members have prepared an intergovernmental 
agreement to provide for the establishment and operation of GovITC, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Intergovernmental Agreement”); and, 

 WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees have determined that it 
is in the best interests of the Village to approve and authorize the execution of the Agreement 
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 Section 1. Recitals. 
 

 The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the President and 
Board of Trustees.  

 
 Section 2. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 The Intergovernmental Agreement is hereby approved in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit A and in final form approved by the Village Attorney.   

Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Intergovernmental 
 Agreement. 

 The Village President and the Village Clerk are authorized and directed to 
execute and seal, on behalf of the Village, the Intergovernmental Agreement, only after receipt 
by the Village Clerk of at least one original copy of the Agreement executed by each of the other 
participating municipalities.     

 Section 4. Effective Date.      
 
 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this Resolution’s 

passage and approval in the manner required by law. 
 
 
 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



2 
 

PASSED this ___ day of ______________, 2015, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Lake Bluff, Illinois, as follows: 

 
 
AYES:   
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
APPROVED this ___ day of __________, 2015.   
      
 
         _____________________ 
         Village President 
ATTEST:   
 
 
__________________ 
Village Clerk 
 
#36630791_v1



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 



 

1 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MEMBERSHIP 

IN A GOVERNMENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSORTIUM (GovITC) 

 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this 28th day of 

September, 2015, by and between the municipalities that have executed this Agreement 

pursuant to its terms (collectively referred to as “Parties”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and Section 

3 of the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act authorize and encourage the entering into 

of Intergovernmental Agreements between units of local government; 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement setting 

forth the responsibilities of the Parties with regard to the operation of a consortium to 

develop and share information technology services, staffing, and equipment; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to establish a long-term information technology shared 

service and support consortium to operate more efficiently, reduce risk, and provide for a 

collaborative environment for innovation and continuous improvement.    

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of this Agreement 

and other good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. General Purpose; Authority 

Section 1.  The general purpose of this Agreement is to establish a long-term 

shared information technology service and support consortium and to establish its 

governing Board and Members.   

Section 2. The Members agree to establish GovITC as an intergovernmental entity to 

implement the functions, services, and responsibilities described in this Agreement. 

Section 3. The GovITC consortium shall operate in accordance with the requirements of 

the Illinois Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/1, et seq., and the Illinois Freedom of 

Information Act, 5 ILCS 140/1, et seq. 



 

2 

 

Section 4. GovITC shall comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and 

regulations. 

Section 5. The Members agree that no one unit shall be responsible or liable, in whole or 

in part, for the acts of GovITC, or the agents or contractors of GovITC, or any other 

Members acting separately or in conjunction with the implementation of the activities 

of GovITC. 

II. Construction and Definitions 

Section 1. The language in the text of this Agreement shall be interpreted in 

accordance with the following rules of construction: 

(a) The singular number includes the plural number and the plural the singular, 

(b) The word “shall” is mandatory; the word “may” is permissive; and 

(c) The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter 

Section 2. When the following words and phrases are used, they shall, for the purposes 

of this Agreement, have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this Section, except 

when the context otherwise indicates. 

(a) “ACCOUNT” - the account or accounts established and funded by the 

Members to: (1) pay the joint administrative expenses of GovITC; (2) fund 

it’s pro rata share of certain approved technology initiatives for GovITC; and 

(3) pay any other expenditure approved by the Board and/or otherwise 

authorized by the terms of this Agreement. 

(b) “AGREEMENT” - this Intergovernmental Agreement for Membership in a 

Government Information Technology Consortium. 

(c) “ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION” – the annual proportional amount paid by 

each member for Shared Initiatives plus any agreed upon administration fees 

such as the annual audit.  

(d) “BOARD” - the Board of Directors of GovITC, consisting of one (1) Director 

from each Member. 

(e) “BY-LAWS” – the by-laws of the GovITC Board, attached as Exhibit B, as 

the Board may be amend from time to time. 



 

3 

 

(f) “CHARTER MEMBER” – the founding members of the GovITC. 

(g) “CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER” - the City or Village Manager or 

Administrator for each Member. 

(h) “CORPORATE AUTHORITIES” - the governing body of each Member. 

(i)  “FISCAL YEAR” - the twelve month period commencing on January 1 of a 

particular year. 

(j) “FORMER MEMBER” - any Unit, which was once a Member, but has either 

withdrawn from GovITC or whose status as a Member was terminated 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

(k) “FUND BALANCE” - the amount of Shared Assets exceeding liabilities at 

any point in time using generally accepted accounting principles. 

(l) “GOVERNMENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSORTIUM” or 

“GovITC” - the consortium created pursuant to this Agreement. 

(m) “INITIAL MEMBERSHIP FEE” - the fee paid upon joining GovITC to gain 

the advantage of innovations, standardization processes and shared platforms 

developed within consortium. 

(n) “INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY” - any and all software, data, maps, or 

related items generated by or for GovITC. Such intellectual property shall be 

considered privileged and confidential trade secrets and shall constitute 

valuable formulae, design and research data or which Members have given 

substantial consideration. 

(o) “IT” or “INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY”- information technology 

systems, equipment, software, equipment, and related services.  

(p) “MASTER CONTRACT” - the standard contract agreement between GovITC 

and a Member. 

(q) “MEMBER” - a Unit which enters into this Agreement and is, at any specific 

time not in default as set forth in this Agreement. 

(r) “MEMBERS ATTRITION FORMULA” - the distribution of Shared Assets 

based on Member original contribution amount and date and its age. 



 

4 

 

(s) “MEMBER GUIDELINES” - the procedures established by the Board to 

implement operations under this Agreement. 

(t) “MEMBERS RESERVE ACCOUNT” or “ACCOUNT” - the account for 

holding Members Annual Contributions. 

(u)  “MINIMUM MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA” - the evaluation criteria used by 

the Board for consideration of new Members as defined in Exhibit A. 

(v) “QUORUM” - the required percentage of Directors necessary for the Board to 

hold a meeting.  A quorum is present when a majority (more than 50%) of the 

Directors is present at a duly called meeting of the Board. 

(w)  “RESERVES” - the amount established through an excess of Annual 

Contributions over expenses and established to reduce the volatility of IT 

expenses. 

(x) “SERVICE CATALOG” – the schedule of IT services and fees provided by 

the Service Provider to Members and approved by the Board on an annual 

basis. 

(y)  “SERVICE PROVIDER” - any professional services firm(s) that GovITC 

designates as the firm(s) to establish, operates, maintain or support 

Information Technology for the Members. 

(z) “SECONDARY SERVICE PROVIDER” - a Service Provider not limited to a 

supplier of software, hardware, or other services. 

(aa) “SHARED ASSETS” - the collective investments in hardware, software, 

communications and other information technology equipment made and used 

by the Members pursuant to this Agreement. 

(bb)  “SHARED INITIATIVES” - the programs or Shared Assets where the cost 

will be shared by the Members and held by GovITC. 

(cc) “SOFTWARE” - the computer programs, form designs, user manuals, data 

specifications and associated documentation employed as part of each 

Member’s IT. 



 

5 

 

(dd) “TRANSFER PLAN” - the plan upon Members suspension, withdrawal, or 

termination from GovITC for the transfer of the  Member’s assets, if any, 

from GovITC including without limitation schedule, tasks, responsibilities and 

final sign off. 

(ee) “UNIT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT” or “UNIT” - includes any political 

subdivision of the State of Illinois or any department or agency of the state 

government or any city, village or any taxing body that is not a Member. 

 

III. Membership 

Section 1.  The Charter Members of GovITC shall be Buffalo Grove, Glenview, 

Kenilworth, Lake Bluff and Lincolnshire.   

Section 2. Units may apply and obtain for membership in GovITC as provided in the 

By-Laws. Any new Unit joining GovITC must meet Minimum Membership Criteria, as the 

Board may amend from time to time. Any exceptions to the Minimum Membership Criteria 

must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the entire Board, with the new Unit 

defining and committing to a plan to meet the full Minimum Membership Criteria within a 

specified timeframe. 

 

IV. Board of Directors 

Section 1. The governing body of GovITC shall be its Board of Directors, which shall 

operate pursuant to the By-Laws attached as Exhibit B, as they may be amended by the 

Board from time to time. 

Section 2.   The Chief Administrative Officer of each Member shall appoint one (1) 

Director to the Board, who shall have one (1) vote, and shall also appoint one alternate 

Director who shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Board but may only vote in the 

absence of the Member’s Director. The Chief Administrative Officer shall promptly fill any 

vacant Director or alternate Director position. 



 

6 

 

Section 3.  The officers of the Board shall consist of a President, a Vice-President, a 

Treasurer, and a Secretary, who shall exercise those powers and duties described in the By-

Laws. 

 

V. Powers and Duties of the Board 

Section 1. The powers and duties of the Board shall include the powers to: 

(a) Take such action, as it deems necessary and appropriate, to accomplish the 

general purposes of this Agreement, including negotiating with a Service 

Provider to determine annual rates and service levels for the Members and 

exercising other ancillary administrative powers. 

(b) Authorize all GovITC expenditures. 

(c) Establish and collect the Initial Membership Fee. 

(d) Establish and collect annual contributions for services to Members and to 

others. 

(e) Establish an annual budget and cause an annual financial accounting report in 

writing to its Members as described in this Agreement. 

(f) Establish reserves for the purposes of operating GovITC. 

(g) Manage reserves including but not limited to the investment thereof. 

(h) Establish general policies and procedures necessary to implement GovITC’s  

authority and purpose consistent with this Agreement and the By-Laws, 

including without limitation the Minimum Membership Criteria, Member 

Guidelines, Members’ Reserve Account  policy, and other policies as deemed 

necessary by the Board. 

(i) Establish strategic goals for GovITC. 

(j) Have an independent audit of GovITC prepared and submitted to the 

Members. 

(k) Exercise any other power necessary and incidental to the implementation of 

its powers and duties and the operation of GovITC pursuant to this 

Agreement. 



 

7 

 

 

 

VI. Board Voting Requirements 

 

Section 1. The following matters require approval by the affirmative two-thirds (2/3) 

vote of the entire Board:  

(a) Merger of GovITC with another consortium;  

(b) Selection of a Service Provider(s) and other necessary parties (accountants, 

attorneys, etc.); 

(c) Approval of annual and three-year budgets of GovITC including the amount 

of each Member’s annual contributions; 

(d) The acquisition of Shared Assets in the form of capital expenditures;  

(e) Approval or conditional approval of any proposed new Member(s); 

(f) Approval of any strategic plan documents; 

(g) Suspension, termination, expulsion, or reinstatement of a Member;  

(h) Dissolution and/or Termination of GovITC. 

(i) Amendments of the By-Laws 

(j) Any other matters specified in this Agreement as requiring the affirmative 

two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Board. 

Section 2. Any and all other action consistent with the other terms of this Agreement 

which the Board deems necessary shall be considered routine in matter and approved 

by an affirmative majority vote of the entire Board. 

 

 

VII. Master Contract  

Section 1. The GovITC goal is to have one Master Contract that governs the duties and 

obligations of the Service Provider to each Member. 

Section 2. Prior to the completion and execution of the Master Contract, each Member 

shall be individually responsible for contracting with their Service Provider. Members shall 



 

8 

 

enter into an IT service contract with the Service Provider substantially conforming to the 

GovITC Service Provider Contract as may be modified by the Board, within one (1) year of 

signing this Agreement, until such time as there is a Master Contract.  Members are expected 

to enter into any agreements with Secondary Service Providers deemed necessary for the 

functioning of GovITC within a reasonable time as determined by the Board of Directors. 

Section 3. Upon completion of the Master Contract and execution by each Member, 

the Master Contract shall control any existing Service Provider Contract shall be of no effect. 

 

 

VIII. Service Provider 

Section 1. Each Director shall make a recommendation to their respective Chief 

Administrative Officer to contract with a Service Provider whose duties for GovITC are 

listed in Subsection 7 of this Article VIII below. 

Section 2. The term of any Service Provider shall be as set forth in the Service 

Provider Agreement and/or Master Contract. 

Section 3. The Board may at any time vote to name a new Service Provider by two-

third (2/3) affirmative vote of the entire Board, whose term shall begin at such time as the 

Board may authorize. 

Section 4. A Service Provider’s term shall be renewed upon such terms as the Board 

may approve. 

Section 5. The Board may terminate the services of a Service Provider at any time, 

subject only to the Service Provider Agreement and/or Master Contract. 

Section 6. The Board may enter into agreements with more than one Service Provider 

if it deems it appropriate. 

Section 7. The Service Provider shall be the principal operating manager of GovITC 

and shall supervise and control day-to-day operations of GovITC and carry out the purpose 

of GovITC as directed by the Board.  Among the duties and authority of the Service Provider 

shall be the following: 



 

9 

 

(a) To sign on behalf of GovITC any instrument which the Board has authorized 

to be executed, by a formal vote or written authority, and, in general, to 

perform all duties pertinent to GovITC and such other duties as may be 

prescribed by the Board consistent with this Agreement from time to time. 

(b) To prepare a proposed annual budget indicating staffing and annual 

contributions and to submit such proposals to the Board. 

(c) To prepare projections of future anticipated expenses through development of 

a three-year (3) budget. 

(d) To make recommendations regarding policy decisions, the creation of other 

Board offices and the retention of agents, employees and independent 

contractors. 

(e) At each regular meeting of the Board and at such other times as requested to 

do so by the Board, to present a full report of the Service Provider’s activities 

and shared initiatives of GovITC. 

(f) To report monthly to each Member on performance measures and summary of 

services performed for each Member pursuant to Service Provider Agreement 

and/or Master Contract. 

(g) Within the constraints of the budget approved by the Board, to make or direct 

distributions from the Reserves account for payment of hardware, software, or 

other expenses of GovITC and maintain accurate and detailed records and 

accounts of all transactions and all Shared Assets. 

(h) Act as liaison officer with the Board and each individual Member’s Director. 

(i) Prepare Board agendas and meeting minutes in conjunction with the Secretary 

or President. 

(j) Monitor billings from Secondary Service Providers to ensure that they are 

received in a timely fashion and in the correct amount. 

(k) Secure bids and request for proposals for hardware, software, and other IT 

services and make recommendations for the selection of vendors for adoption 

by the Board. 



 

10 

 

(l) Expend reasonable funds in an emergency with written notice to the Board.  

(m) Provide necessary information to the Board’s selected certified public 

accountant in conjunction with the preparation of the annual reports. 

(n) Solicit new Members with direction from strategic goals adopted by the 

Board. 

(o) Draft GovITC and Board goals for each coming year for review and approval 

by the Board. 

IX. Obligations of Members 

Section 1. The obligations of each Member shall be as follows:  

(a) To execute a contract with the Service Provider until such time as a 

Master Contract is available; 

(b) To appropriate or budget for and, where necessary, to levy for, and pay 

promptly all monthly and supplementary or other payments following the 

Illinois Prompt Payment Act and in such amounts as are established within 

the scope of this Agreement;  

(c) To select promptly a Director to serve on the Board and an alternate;  

(d) To cooperate fully with the Service Provider, GovITC’s attorneys and 

auditors and any agent, employee, officer or independent contractor of 

GovITC in any matter relating to the purpose and powers of GovITC;  

(e) To review all proposed changes to IT strategic plans prior to the Board’s 

final vote on such changes; 

(f) To act promptly on all matters requiring Board approval and to not 

withhold such approval unreasonably or arbitrarily;  

(g) To purchase and maintain hardware, software, and other necessary 

agreements that are individual Member initiatives which are not Shared 

Assets or a Shared Initiative; and.  

(h) To purchase and maintain Comprehensive General Liability (CGL) and 

Workers Compensation insurance covering liability arising out of the 

Member’s participation in GovITC, including any liability arising from the 



 

11 

 

actions of the Member’s Representative acting in his/her scope of 

authority under this Agreement.  

Section 2. At the discretion of the Board, non-performance of Member obligations, 

whether in whole or in part, may be the basis for a recommendation to terminate 

pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement. 

 



 

12 

 

X. Financial Matters 

Section 1. The Fiscal Year of GovITC shall be from January 1 through December 31. 

Each Member shall be liable for and pay to GovITC a share of the total Annual 

Contribution required in each GovITC Fiscal Year which shall be calculated by the Board on 

an allocation basis that is divided by the number of participants and weighted by criteria such 

as storage volume, bandwidth demand, the number of units to support, etc. or as otherwise 

determined by the Board. 

Section 2. The proposed revenue requirements and corresponding Member 

contribution for GovITC’s next ensuing Fiscal Year will be presented to the GovITC Board 

annually in due course, but in no event later than 90 days before the start of such Fiscal Year. 

The Annual Contribution for the ensuing Fiscal Year and the amount of each Member’s share 

shall be determined by the affirmative two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Board. 

Section 3. Each Member shall remit at least fifty percent (50%) of its Annual 

Contribution to GovITC on or before April 1 of the Fiscal Year to which the contribution 

pertains.  The balance of each Member’s annual contribution is to be paid by September 1.  

Each Member shall be liable for the complete payment of its annual contributions. 

Section 4. Billings for all charges shall be made by the Board and shall be due when 

rendered. Any Member whose charges have not been paid within 90 days after billing shall 

be in default and shall not be entitled to further voting privileges or to have its director hold 

any office on the Board and shall not use any GovITC facilities or programs until such time 

as such Member is no longer in default. Members in default shall be subject to the provisions 

within this Agreement.  In the event that such charges have not been paid within 90 days of 

such billing, such defaulting Member shall be deemed to have given, on such 90th day, 

notice of withdrawal from Membership by the Board.  In the event of a bona fide dispute 

between the Member and the Board as to the amount which is due and payable, the Member 

shall nevertheless make such payment in order to preserve its status as a Member, but such 

payment may be made under protest and without prejudice to its right to dispute the amount 

of the charge and to pursue any legal remedies available to it. Withdrawal shall not relieve 

any such Member from its financial obligations as set forth in this Agreement. 



 

13 

 

Section 5. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall prevent the Board from charging 

non-Members for services rendered by GovITC on such basis as the Board shall deem 

appropriate. 

Section 6. It is anticipated that GovITC may be in a position to receive financial 

assistance in the form of grants. The Board may credit any such grants against charges for 

any Member, Members, or GovITC in a manner agreed to by the Board. The Board may also 

enter into an agreement, as a condition to any such grant, that it will credit all or a portion of 

such grant towards charges, which may be made in the future. 

Section 7. The amount required for Reserves shall be calculated on an annual basis for 

presentation and acceptance by the Board as part of the annual budget process. 

 

XI. Termination of Membership 

Section 1. Failure to enter into an agreement with the Service Provider within one (1) 

year of GovITC’s designation of the Service Provider shall be cause for the termination of 

Membership.  A 30-day written notice will be given to a Member that fails to enter into an 

agreement with the Service Provider as provided in this Section.  Upon the failure to enter 

into an agreement at the end of the thirty-day (30) notice period, its Membership shall be 

terminated. 

Section 2. Failure to enter into an agreement within thirty 30 days of expiration of the 

previous agreement with Service Provider shall result in Membership termination. 

Section 3. A Member shall be terminated for cause including not participating as a 

Board Member, not paying dues, not signing a Master Contract, not maintaining the 

minimum standards of the organization, violating the security standards of the organization, 

or other activities determined by the Board and based on an affirmative vote of two-thirds 

(2/3) of the entire Board.. 

Section 4. Upon termination of any Member, the Member shall be responsible for: 

(a) All of its pro-rated share of any obligations; 

(b) Its share of all charges to the effective date of termination;  

(c) Restitution for damages or malicious actions outside of insurance;  



 

14 

 

(d) A Transfer Plan prepared by the Service Provider, paid for by the Member, 

and approved by the Board; and 

(e) Any contractual obligations it has separately incurred with GovITC or the 

Service Provider. 

Section 5. A Member terminated from Membership at a time when such termination 

does not result in dissolution of GovITC, shall forfeit its claim to any Shared Assets of 

GovITC. Any terminated Member shall be subject to the provisions described elsewhere in 

this Agreement. 

Section 6. If a Member remains in default for a period of more than 90 days on any 

billing from GovITC, the Membership automatically shall terminate. 

 

XII. Withdrawal 

Section 1. All new Members of GovITC shall be committed as Members for an initial 

three (3) year Membership.  

Section 2. After the period of an initial three-year Membership, any Member may 

withdraw from GovITC at the end of a Fiscal Year of GovITC upon giving of at least eight 

(8) months prior written notice of such withdrawal.  Such notice shall be addressed to the 

Board of Directors of the GovITC and shall be accompanied by a resolution of the Corporate 

Authorities of the Member electing to withdraw from GovITC.   

Section 3. The nonpayment of charges as set forth in this Agreement or the refusal or 

declination of any Member to be bound by any obligation to GovITC shall constitute written 

notice of withdrawal, but shall not relieve Member of its obligations. 

Section 4. Upon effective withdrawal the withdrawing Member shall continue to be 

responsible for: 

(a) All of its pro-rated share of any obligations; 

(b) Its share of all charges to the effective date of termination; 

(c) A Transfer Plan prepared by the Service Provider, paid for by the 

Member, and approved by the Board; and 



 

15 

 

(d) Any contractual obligations it has separately incurred with GovITC or 

the Service Provider(s). 

Section 5. A Member withdrawing from Membership at a time when such withdrawal 

does not result in dissolution of GovITC shall forfeit its claim to any Shared Assets of 

GovITC.  Any Member that withdraws shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.  

The Service Provider will act on the behalf of the withdrawing Member to transition Member 

out during the period specified in the Transfer Plan.  If withdrawing Member cannot meet 

specific period, withdrawing Member must pay Service Provider on a month-to-month basis 

or as mutually agreed upon.  The withdrawing Member shall, within thirty (30) days of 

withdrawal, file a certification with the Board, verifying compliance with this Section. 

 

XIII. Dissolution 

Section 1. GovITC shall be dissolved whenever: 

(a) A sufficient number of Members withdraw from GovITC to reduce the total 

number of Members to less than two (2); or 

(b) By affirmative two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Board. 

Section 2. In the event of dissolution, the Board shall determine the procedures 

necessary to affect the dissolution and shall provide for the taking of such measures as 

promptly as circumstances permit subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 3. Upon dissolution, after payment of all obligations, the remaining Shared 

Assets of GovITC shall be distributed among the then existing Members in accordance with 

the Members Attrition Formula applied to any surplus value found with the sale of the 

Shared Assets.  

Section 4. If, upon dissolution and the sale of the Shared Assets and the application of 

reserves, there is an organizational deficit, such deficit shall be charged to and paid by the 

Members and withdrawing Member(s) that caused the dissolution in accordance with 

obligations as described in Article XI on a pro-rata basis calculated from the Members 

Attrition Formula. 



 

16 

 

Section 5. In the event of dissolution and once all obligations have been paid, the 

following provisions shall govern the distribution of  Shared Assets owned by GovITC: 

(a) Each Member shall be required to transition software in the name of GovITC 

to each own organization as applicable. 

(b) A Member may continue to use any intellectual property developed on their 

behalf during the term of its Membership. 

(c) Each organization is responsible for making their information technology 

support backbone ready to accept their data volume and transfer of Shared 

Assets. 

(d) Reserves will be distributed by applying the initiation fee formula to the 

remaining Members and the affirmative 2/3 majority vote of the entire Board.  

 

 

XIV. Merger of the Consortium 

Section 1. GovITC may merge with any other consortium established under the Illinois 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act upon the affirmative two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the 

entire Board. 

 

XV. General Conditions 

Section 1. Notice.  All notices hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be deemed given 

when delivered in person or by United States certified mail, with return receipt requested, 

and if mailed, with postage prepaid.  All notices shall be addressed as follows: 

If to GovITC: 

President of GovITC 

With a copy to the Service Provider 

If to Member: 

Village/City Manager 
Name of Village/City  



 

17 

 

Address 

Legal Firm Name of Village/City 
Address 
 

Each party shall have the right to designate other addresses for service of notices, provided 

notice of change of address is duly given. 

Section 2. The Parties certify that they are not barred from entering into this 

Agreement as a result of violations of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of the Illinois 

Criminal Code and that they each have a written sexual harassment policy in place in full 

compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4). 

Section 3. Except as set forth herein, no Member may, by its own actions, obligate 

GovITC or any other Member. 

Section 4. This Agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

Section 5. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes any and all prior agreements and negotiations between the parties, whether 

written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Section 6. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective until it 

is reduced to writing and approved and executed by all parties to this Agreement in 

accordance with applicable law. 

XVI. Duration 

 This Agreement shall continue in effect indefinitely, until terminated in accordance 

with its term or until GovITC is dissolved. 

XVII. Intellectual Property 

Section 1. Members agree that no assignments, licenses, sales, authorization of reuse 

by others, giveaways, transfer or any other grant of Intellectual Property rights will be made 

to any third party without written permission from the Board. 

Section 2. It is understood that this Agreement does not grant to any Member or any 

employees, partners or other business associates thereof, any rights in any Intellectual 



 

18 

 

Property or any inherent protectable interests, except those specifically provided by this 

Agreement. 

 

XVIII. Execution of Agreement 

 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 

for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as 

GovITC and the Members or additional Members shall preserve undestroyed, shall together 

constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

  



 

19 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement for the Creation of a 

Government Information Technology Consortium to be executed in the Members respective 

name, and have caused this Agreement for the Creation of a Government Information 

Technology Consortium to be attested, all by their duly authorized officers and 

representatives, and have caused the Agreement for the Creation of a Government 

Information Technology Consortium to be dated this day of, 20___. 

By:___________________________ 

Its: ___________________________ 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

Village Clerk 

Seal 

 

  



 

20 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Minimum Membership Criteria 

1. Participating entities must agree to upgrade or replace hardware, or software that has 
reached end of support by the manufacturer within a reasonable timeframe unless 
otherwise waived by the Consortium Board per the voting standards set forth in the 
agreement. 
a. Hardware that has reached end of support should be replaced by the end of the first 

year of consortium participation. 
b. Software, such as operating systems or desktop applications (i.e. Microsoft Office, 

Adobe, etc.) should be upgraded by the end of the first year of service. 
c. Software such as ERP/Line of business that have reached end of support, should have 

a plan for upgrade by the end of the first year of service, and migrated to a supported 
platform within 36 months.  

2. Entities must agree to transition and operate primarily on a platform that is used and 
supported by the Consortium (i.e. Windows Server/desktop) or agree to move to a 
supported platform within 18 months.  An example of an exception is a system such as 
the L3 mobile video system that run on a Linux OS will be supported as long as 
maintenance with the vendor is maintained. 

3. Entities seeking membership must contract for a minimum of 0.2 FTE equivalent 
staffing.  

4. The current state of the network and infrastructure will be assessed to determine 
environment/condition of potential new member and the appropriate initiation fee and 
managed services pricing.  

5. There must be a technical point of contact to ensure appropriate communication with 
village/city management. 

6. Participation requires a minimum three (3) year membership due to hardware/equipment 
investment and strategic planning.  
 

  



 

21 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Initial By-Laws of GovITC Board of Directors 

  



 

B‐1 

 

INITIAL BY-LAWS OF THE 

GOVERNMENT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSORTIUM (GovITC) 

ARTICLE I – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 1. This document establishes the Initial By-laws of the GovITC consortium 

pursuant to that certain Intergovernmental Agreement dated ___________________ 

(“Agreement”), attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 2. Definitions set forth in the Agreement shall apply herein. 

Section 3. GovITC shall operate in accordance with the requirements of the Illinois 

Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/1, et seq., and the Illinois Freedom of Information Act, 5 

ILCS 140/1, et seq. 

ARTICLE II - AUTHORITY 

Section 1. GovITC is formed pursuant to Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois 

Constitution of 1970 and Section 3 of the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 

which authorizes and encourages the entering into of Intergovernmental Agreements 

between Members of local government.  

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1. Any Unit may be eligible and can apply to the Board to become a 

Member of GovITC.  The Unit should be able to help progress the mission and goals of 

GovITC as described in the Agreement and to fulfill the growth strategy set by the Board. 

Section 2. Any Unit joining GovITC must meet the Minimum Membership 

Criteria, as the Board may amend from time to time. Any exceptions to the Minimum 

Membership Criteria must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the Board, 

with the new Unit defining and committing to a plan to meet the full Minimum 

Membership Criteria within a specified timeframe. 



 

B‐2 

 

Section 3. A Unit desiring to be a Member must undergo a network and security 

assessment of their Information Technology environment by the Service Provider on 

behalf of GovITC.   

(a) The assessment will be funded by the Unit applying for membership, 

unless otherwise approved by the Board, and the applying Unit shall be 

obligated to provide relevant information and access to facilities needed 

for the assessment; 

(b) The Service Provider shall conduct the assessment based on certain 

standards, including, but not limited to, hardware age, network and backup 

status, and adherence to update protocols with a weighted score for each 

with poor condition being weighted more heavily; and 

(c) The assessment scores of the Unit shall be used to help determine the 

Initial Membership Fee. 

Section 4.  A Unit desiring to be a Member shall execute a counterpart of the 

Agreement and shall pay the Initial Membership Fee.  Payment shall be made to the 

Treasurer of GovITC who will deposit such payment into the GovITC Account.  

Thereupon, the clerk or other corresponding officer of the Member shall file a duly 

executed copy of the Agreement, together with a certified copy the authorizing resolution 

or other action, with the GovITC President. The resolution authorizing the execution of 

the Agreement shall also designate the first Director and alternate Director for the 

Member. 

Section 5. Addition of a new Member must be made on a vote of the entire Board 

by two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the entire Board. 

Section 6. Approved new Members normally enter the program on January 1 

(beginning of Fiscal Year) or July 1.  Entry in to the program at other times may be 

permitted, the terms and conditions of which to be mutually agreed upon by the new 

Member and GovITC.  In its discretion, the Board may allow entry to the program at 

other times and may impose restrictions, limitations, etc. with respect to such entry. Any 

Member joining GovITC agrees, upon joining, that if it is to become a Former Member, it 



 

B‐3 

 

will be bound by all of the obligations of a Former Member as set forth in this 

Agreement. 

Section 7. Former Members will require a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the 

entire Board in order to rejoin GovITC. 

ARTICLE IV – BOARD COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES 

Section 1. The Board shall consist of the Directors and alternate Directors appointed 

by the Chief Administrative Officer of each Member.  In order for GovITC to be of 

maximum value, the Members shall appoint, as their Directors and alternates, an 

administrative officer that is a department head or an employee with significant 

management responsibility and experience.  The Board shall be the governing body of 

GovITC, with authority to take all appropriate actions and to perform all duties to 

accomplish the purposes of GovITC.  

Section 2. The Board shall be responsible for establishing all GovITC policies, the 

annual budget and the annual contribution rate for the operation of the GovITC, all non-

budgeted capital outlays and strategic IT plans of which these By-laws and subsequent 

policies or procedures are an integral part, to provide a system of communications among 

its members for enforcement purposes, or as otherwise approved by the Board.  

Section 3. The Executive Committee of the Board shall consist of the President, 

Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer, as elected by the Directors (“Executive 

Committee”), who shall hold office for a term of two (2) years or until a successor has 

been elected.  The Executive Committee will be divided into two classes in order to 

stagger the terms of said members and achieve continuity of governance of GovITC as 

follows: The President and Vice-President, whose terms expire at the end of the final 

meeting of the Board in even-numbered years; and the Treasurer and Secretary, whose 

initial terms shall be for one year, and for whom subsequent terms shall expire at the end 

of the final meeting of the Board in odd-numbered years. 

Section 4. When a vacancy occurs on the Executive Committee, a special meeting of 

the Board should be called to elect a successor for the remainder of the term of office.  



 

B‐4 

 

Section 5. The Board may under special circumstances allow for electronic voting.  

All votes must be cast in accordance with the By-laws.  

Section 6. Each Director and alternate Director shall be appointed to serve until a 

successor is appointed.  

Section 7. When the Chief Administrative Officer of a Member appoints a Director 

or an alternate Director notice of such appointment shall be given to GovITC in writing. 

Such notice shall include the mailing address and email address of each person so 

appointed. The names and addresses shown on such notices may be used as the official 

names and addresses for the purposes of giving any notices required by this Agreement or 

by the By-laws of GovITC.  Notice to GovITC shall be made to the Secretary of GovITC 

at the address of the President with copy to the Service Provider.  

Section 8. Any Director or alternate Director shall be subject to removal by the 

appointing Chief Administrative Officer of the Member, at any time, with or without 

cause.  

Section 9. The Chief Administrative Officer of the Member whose Director position 

on the Board is vacant shall fill a vacancy on the Board.  

Section 10.A Director (or alternate) shall not be eligible to vote on behalf of the 

Member during the time that such Member is in default on any contribution to GovITC or 

on any contract with GovITC.  During the existence of any default, the vote(s) of such 

Member shall not be counted as eligible vote(s).  If a Member remains in default for a 

period of more than 90 days on any billing from GovITC, the membership of such 

Member automatically shall terminate.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, all 

outstanding financial obligations to GovITC shall remain enforceable.  

Section 11.The Board shall be authorized to indemnify and protect its members and 

GovITC employees and contractors against damage claims and suits arising from acts 

alleged to have been committed within the scope of their employment with or duties to 

GovITC, to the fullest extent permitted by law. 



 

B‐5 

 

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS 

Section 1. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held annually at a time and place 

determined by the Executive Committee. Special meetings may be called by the 

President, a majority of the Executive Committee, or by one-third (1/3) of the Directors.  

Section 2. The Executive Committee shall meet when called by the President or a 

majority of the Executive Committee members.  

Section 3. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for meetings of the 

Board and Executive Committee.  

Section 4. The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern meetings in all 

cases in which they are applicable and not inconsistent with these By-laws. In the event 

of a conflict between these By-laws and Robert’s Rules of Order, these By-laws shall 

control. 

Section 5. At the final meeting of the Board in even numbered years, the Board shall 

elect from its Directors a President and a Vice-President and in odd numbered years, the 

Board shall elect from its Directors a Secretary and a Treasurer.  

Section 6. Regular public meetings of the Board shall be held at least annually. 

Notice of regular meetings of the Board shall be given to the Directors and alternates by 

the Secretary of the Board at least fifteen (15) days in advance and the agendas for such 

meetings shall accompany the notice.  However, business at regular meetings of the 

Board need not be limited to matters set forth in the agenda.  

Section 7. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or upon the 

request of a majority of the Directors. Five (5) days’ notice of special meetings shall be 

given to the Directors and alternates. Such notice shall include the agenda for the special 

meetings.  

ARTICLE VI - DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

Section 1. The President shall preside at all Board meetings including the final 

meeting prior to the new Board and will appoint members of all committees with the 

advice and consent of the Board.  New officers shall take office at the adjournment of the 



 

B‐6 

 

annual meeting of the Board at which they are elected. Upon vacancy occurring in any 

office, the Board shall fill such position at the next meeting of the Board.  

Section 2. The Vice-President shall serve as an assistant to the President and shall 

perform the duties of the President and act as President in their absence.  

Section 3. The Secretary shall keep an accurate record of the proceedings from all 

official meetings, carry on official correspondence of GovITC as directed by the Board, 

provide to each Director the official minutes of all meetings and maintain all official 

GovITC records. Any persons may be engaged to perform such services under the 

Secretary’s supervision and direction.  

Section 4.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for financial oversight of GovITC.   

The Treasurer shall ensure GovITC has the custody of the GovITC funds and shall ensure 

that GovITC keeps full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements of GovITC, 

and shall ensure that all the deposit of monies and other valuables are in the name and to 

the credit of GovITC into depositories designated by the Board.  The Treasurer shall give 

financial reports as required by the Board and perform such other duties pertaining to the 

office including but not limited to member invoicing and receipting, bank reconciliation, 

account balances, etc.  

ARTICLE VII - COMMITTEES 

Section 1. The President or Board may create such committees as are deemed 

necessary to accomplish the purposes of GovITC.  

 

ARTICLE VIII – ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION AND INITIAL MEMBERSHIP 

FEE 

Section 1. The annual contribution and initial membership fee as described in the 

Intergovernmental Agreement shall be prescribed by the Board and shall be payable to 

GovITC.  All assessments approved by the Board shall be binding upon all members and 

payment shall be a condition of membership.  



 

B‐7 

 

Section 2. Any Member who fails to tender the annual dues or assessments as 

described in the In Agreement may subject to penalties up to and including termination of 

Membership as provided herein and in the Agreement.  

ARTICLE IX - COMPENSATION 

Section 1. Officers and members of the Board shall serve without compensation.  

Section 2. The Board may approve compensation, as needed, for all other 

professional services required by GovITC.  

Section 3. GovITC may accept donations, apply for and use grants or loans of money 

or other property from state or federal institutions, or any other Members or 

organizations, and may enter into agreements and may hold, use and dispose of such 

money or property in accordance with the terms of the donation, grant, loan or 

agreement.  

ARTICLE X – FINANCES 

Section 1. The Fiscal Year of GovITC shall be from January 1 through December 31. 

Section 2. The proposed revenue requirements and corresponding member 

contribution for GovITC’s next ensuing Fiscal Year will be presented to the GovITC 

Board annually in due course, but in no event later than 60 days before the start of such 

Fiscal Year. The annual contribution for the ensuing Fiscal Year and the amount of each 

member agency’s share shall be determined by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire Board. 

Section 3. The Board must approve all disbursements of funds as set forth in the 

Master Agreement.  

Section 4. All checks issued by the GovITC must have dual signature for the 

President and Treasurer.  

Section 5. The Board shall direct that an annual independent audit of the GovITC 
shall be prepared and submitted to each Member. 

ARTICLE XI - PROPERTY 



 

B‐8 

 

Section 1. The equipment, property and supplies purchased by GovITC through 

assessments or otherwise acquired in its name, shall remain the property of GovITC.  

Any equipment, property and supplies titled to GovITC at the time of the adoption of 

these By-laws shall remain titled to GovITC.  

Section 2. GovITC or its designee shall maintain a list concerning the description and 

location of such equipment, property and supplies.  

Section 3. GovITC equipment shall not be changed or modified without approval of 

the Board for reasons other than routine management and maintenance.  

ARTICLE XII - AMENDMENTS 

Section 1. These By-laws may be amended at any meeting of the Board by a two-

thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the entire Board, provided the amendment and notice of 

the meeting shall have been sent to the Directors not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the 

meeting.  

ARTICLE XIII – DISSOLUTION 

Section 1. If at any regular meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose of 

dissolution, GovITC shall be dissolved whenever (a) a sufficient number of Members 

withdraw from GovITC to reduce the total number of Members to less than two (2) or (b) 

by two-thirds (2/3) vote of entire Board. The Board shall determine and implement 

procedures governing the dissolution.  

ARTICLE XV - EFFECTIVE DATE 

These By-laws shall be in full force and effect from and after their passage and approval.  

AYES: ____________________________ NAYS: ________________________  

PASSED this _________ day of _________________________, __________  

APPROVED this _________ day of _________________________, _________  

APPROVED:  



 

B‐9 

 

____________________________  

President  

_____________________________  

Vice-President  

ATTEST:  

_____________________________  

Secretary  

ARTICLE XVI – AYES SIGNATURE 



cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



































































































RESOLUTION 2015-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE 25TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE 
PASSAGE OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

 
 WHEREAS, nearly 1 in 5 residents of the United States have a disability; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the population of people with disabilities is increasing among all age groups; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) was signed into law on July 26, 1990 
by President George H. W. Bush; and, 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to pause and celebrate/recognize the ADA as a wide ranging and 
landmark piece of civil rights legislation that prohibits discrimination based on disability; and, 

 WHEREAS, in enacting the ADA, Congress recognized that persons with disabilities have a 
history of being subjected to unequal treatment, and that the nation’s goals regarding individuals with 
disabilities are to assure equality of opportunity, full participation, independent living, and economic self 
sufficiency; and, 

 WHEREAS, the ADA has expanded opportunities for Americans with disabilities by reducing 
barriers and changing perceptions, and increasing full inclusion in community life; and, 

 WHEREAS, despite the great strides that people with disabilities have made as a result of the 
ADA, barriers remain; and, 

WHEREAS, the goals of ADA 25 are to foster public recognition that disability is a natural part 
of the human experience and expand opportunities for people with disabilities to participate fully in civic, 
social and economic life of the nation, our state and our community. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, COUNTY OF LAKE AND STATE OF 
ILLINOIS, that:  the most effective way in which to celebrate this milestone 25th Anniversary of the 
ADA is to reaffirm our opposition to discrimination based on disability and to strive to promote full 
implementation of the ADA. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we encourage the reduction of stigma and discrimination 
against people with disabilities through education and training as well as support the pursuit of programs 
to ensure that the spirit and founding provisions of the ADA are maintained, implemented, and enforced. 

DATED this 28th day of September, 2015, at the Village of Lake Bluff, Lake County, Illinois.  

 

ATTEST:  
 

_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Village President      Village Clerk 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM: 14



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

Agenda Item: 15 
 
 
Subject: 

 
SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE VII OF THE LAKE BLUFF 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING SMOKING REGULATIONS (E-Cigarettes) 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ADOPTION OF THE ORDINANCE 

 
Originated By: 

 
VILLAGE STAFF 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
In 2008 the Village Board supported an aggressive ordinance to restrict smoking in all enclosed public areas, all places of 
employment and in certain unenclosed public areas such as park grounds and school grounds. The purpose of the 
restrictions was to ensure that non-smokers may breathe air free from the hazardous effects of second hand smoke.  In 
recent years, manufacturers have developed electronic devices intended to simulate cigarette smoking and designed to 
deliver nicotine, other chemicals and flavors by using a heating element to turn the nicotine, other chemicals and flavors 
into an aerosol, gas or vapor that is inhaled or “vaped” by the user. 
 
The United States Food & Drug Administration, the Center for Disease Control and Prevention, the World Health 
Organization, and many leading public health organizations have expressed concern about (i) the dramatic increase in the 
use of e-cigarettes by minors under eighteen (18) years of age, (ii) the marketing of e-cigarettes without appropriate health 
warnings or age-restrictions including the marketing of sweet flavors targeted to minors under eighteen (18) years of age, 
and (iii) the lack of clinical studies on the potential health risks posed by e-cigarettes. E-cigarettes remain unregulated at 
the federal level, leaving states and local governments to adopt their own regulation regarding the smoking of e-cigarettes 
in public places and work places, the sale and distribution of e-cigarettes to minors under eighteen (18) years of age, and 
the possession of e-cigarettes by minors under eighteen (18) years of age. In an effort to respond to these concerns, several 
municipalities have amended their ordinances to include e-cigarettes in the same manner that cigarettes are 
regulated/licensed and prohibited.  
 
At the direction of the Committee-of-the-Whole (COW) (April 9, 2015), the Village Attorney has prepared the attached 
ordinance to restrict the sale, possession and use of e-cigarettes in the same manner as cigarettes are currently regulated 
and licensed.  This action would align with the Village Board’s original intentions and policy, and this amendment will 
continue to protect minors under 18 and persons in proximity of devices in use from the possible risk posed from “second 
hand” vapors.  The Village Board approved first reading of the ordinance at its meeting on September 14, 2015. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

 Revised Ordinance. 
 
The following documents were provided as part of the September 14th Village Board Agenda Packet: 
 

 Memo To COW dated April 8, 2015; and 
 Excerpt from April 13, 2015 COW meeting minutes. 

 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation: Adoption of the Ordinance 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 9/28/2015 
 
 
 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-___ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE VII OF  
THE LAKE BLUFF MUNICIPAL CODE  

REGARDING SMOKING REGULATIONS (E-Cigarettes) 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 5 of Title 4 of the Village of Lake Bluff Municipal 
Code (“Village Code”), the Village broadly prohibits smoking in enclosed areas within public 
places and places of employment; and, 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5-8-4 of the Village Code, the Village prohibits the 
purchase and possession of tobacco products by minors; and, 

 WHEREAS, recent studies indicate that electronic smoking devices, commonly 
known as “e-cigarettes,” pose significant health risks to both users of e-cigarettes and to those in 
the vicinity of users; and, 

 WHEREAS, the United States Food and Drug Administration has issued a caution 
related to e-cigarettes because the safety and efficacy of e-cigarettes have not been fully 
researched and studied, and it is not known if the use of e-cigarettes may lead young people to 
try tobacco products, including conventional cigarettes, which are known to cause disease and 
lead to premature death; and, 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the home rule powers of the Village, the Village Board 
desires to amend: (i) Chapter 5 of Title 4 of the Village Code to prohibit the use of e-cigarettes at 
all locations within the Village at which smoking is currently prohibited; and (ii) Section 5-8-4 of 
the Village Code to prohibit the purchase and possession of e-cigarettes by minors; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board has determined that it will serve and be in the best 
interest of the Village and its residents to amend the Village Code pursuant to this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 Section 1: Recitals.   

 The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of, this Ordinance as 
the findings of the Village Board. 

 Section 2: Amendments to Section 4-5-1 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-1, titled "Introduction,” of Chapter 5, titled “Smoking Regulations,” of 
Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code is hereby amended further 
to read as follows: 

“4-5-1: INTRODUCTION: 

Smoking creates the hazard of injury to the personal health of those in the 
environment of such smoke as well as the potential damage to property which may 
result from the combustible nature of such substance. It has been determined that 
breathing ambient smoke is a health hazard to both smokers and nonsmokers.  



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
2 

Cigarette smoking also produces several substances that are considered 
hazardous to health including carbon monoxide, hydrogen cyanide, nitrous oxide 
and formaldehyde. Secondhand smoke (68 percent of the smoke produced by a 
cigarette) affects the health of the bystander, interfering with respiratory tract 
defenses, often causing nonsmokers to have allergic or irritative reactions, and is 
a known cause of lung cancer.   

The use of e-cigarettes, as an alternative to smoking traditional cigarettes, 
has proliferated in recent years.  Although often marketed as safe, the United 
States Food and Drug Administration has issued a caution related to e-
cigarettes because the safety and efficacy of e-cigarettes have not been fully 
researched and studied, and it is not known if the use of e-cigarettes may 
lead young people to try tobacco products, including conventional 
cigarettes, which are known to cause disease and lead to premature death. 

Because the hazards of smoking and the use of e-cigarettes have a potentially 
harmful effect, material and direct, on the public health, safety, welfare, comfort 
and property of residents of the Village, it is, therefore, necessary and desirable to 
establish regulations that prohibit smoking and the use of e-cigarettes in all 
enclosed public places, in all places of employment, and in certain unenclosed 
public places.” 

 Section 3: Amendments to Section 4-5-2 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-2, titled "Title; Purpose,” of Chapter 5, titled “Smoking Regulations,” of 
Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code is hereby amended further 
to read as follows: 

“4-5-2: TITLE; PURPOSE: 

This chapter may be cited as the Lake Bluff Smoking Ban Ordinance, the 
purpose of which is to protect the public health, comfort and environment by 
prohibiting smoking and the use of e-cigarettes in all enclosed public places, all 
places of employment, and in certain unenclosed public areas, in order to ensure 
that nonsmokers may breathe air free from the hazardous effects of secondhand 
smoke.” 

 Section 4: Amendments to Section 4-5-3 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-3, titled "Definitions,” of Chapter 5, titled “Smoking Regulations,” of 
Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code is hereby amended further 
by adding the following new definition to be inserted in correct alphabetical order:  

“4-5-3: DEFINITIONS: 

Wherever the following words or phrases are used, they shall, for purposes of this 
chapter, have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except when the 
context otherwise indicates. If a word or phrase is not specifically defined in this 
section, it shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Smokefree Illinois Act.  

*  *  * 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
3 

E-CIGARETTE: An electronic device that typically includes a mouthpiece, a 
heating element or atomizer, a battery, and electronic circuits; provides a 
gas derived from a liquid that includes nicotine, propylene glycol, or similar 
substance and perhaps other substances; and is inhaled by a user in a 
manner that simulates or resembles smoking.  The term "e-cigarette" 
includes all manner of these devices, regardless of the details of a device’s 
appearance or marketed name, that are manufactured to resemble a 
cigarette, cigar, pipe, or other smoking device.  The term "e-cigarette" 
includes the cartridges and component parts of an e-cigarette, individually 
or in any combination." 

*  *  * 

 Section 5: Amendments to Section 4-5-4 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-4, titled "Applicability of Smoke Free Illinois Act,” of Chapter 5, titled 
“Smoking Regulations,” of Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code 
is hereby amended further to read as follows:: 

“4-5-4: APPLICABILITY OF THE SMOKE FREE ILLINOIS ACT: 

The Village hereby acknowledges that the Smoke Free Illinois Act is applicable, 
and is in full force and effect, within the Village.  No person shall smoke, or use 
an e-cigarette, in any place in the Village within which smoking is prohibited 
pursuant to the Smoke Free Illinois Act. In the event of a conflict between the 
Smoke Free Illinois Act and the provisions of this chapter, the most restrictive 
provision shall control.” 

 Section 6: Amendments to Section 4-5-5 of the Village Code.   

Section 4-5-5, titled "Prohibitions and Exceptions,” of Chapter 5, titled “Smoking 
Regulations,” of Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code is hereby 
amended further to read as follows: 

“4-5-5: PROHIBITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS: 

A. Unenclosed Public Places: No person shall smoke, or use an e-cigarette, in 
the following unenclosed public places: 

(1) Outdoor venues; 

(2) Park grounds; 

(3) School grounds; 

(4) Public transportation loading areas and platforms; 

(5) Public golf driving ranges; 

(6) The Lake Bluff golf course, except for those areas on the 
golf course located at least seventy five feet (75’) from the clubhouse building; 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
4 

(7) Village owned parking lots; 

(8) Outdoor eating areas; provided, however, that this 
prohibition shall not apply to any person who is temporarily in any portion of an 
outdoor eating area that is located on a public sidewalk for the sole purpose of 
walking or traversing through such area; 

(9) Public sidewalks within 25 feet of an outdoor eating area; 
provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to any person who is 
temporarily in such area for the sole purpose of walking or traversing through such 
area; 

(10) The Village Green; and  

(11) Gasoline or fuel stations.  

B. Entrances: Smoking, and the use of e-cigarettes, shall be prohibited within 25 
feet of an entrance to any place (enclosed or unenclosed) within which smoking 
is prohibited; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to any 
person who is temporarily in such area for the sole purpose of walking or 
traversing through such area. 

C. Public Meetings: Smoking, and the use of e-cigarettes, shall be prohibited in 
all public meetings. 

D. Common Residential Areas:  No person shall smoke, or use an e-cigarette, in 
any common or public place (including, without limitation, lobbies, hallways, 
reception areas, public restrooms, and elevators) of any apartment building, 
condominium, dormitory building, nursing home, long-term care facility, or 
other multiple-family residential structures; provided, however that smoking, 
and the use of e-cigarettes, shall be permitted in semi-private rooms in a 
nursing home or long-term care facility of which all of the occupants (1) are 
smokers and/or habitual users of e-cigarettes, and (2) have requested in 
writing to be placed or to remain in a room where smoking, and/or the use of 
e-cigarettes, is permitted. 

 Section 7: Amendments to Section 4-5-6 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-6, titled "Signs and Ashtrays,” of Chapter 5, titled “Smoking 
Regulations,” of Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code is hereby 
amended further to read as follows: 

“4-5-6: SIGNS AND ASHTRAYS: 

Each owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of any place within which 
smoking or the use of e-cigarettes is prohibited pursuant to this chapter shall: 

A. Signs Posted: Conspicuously post signs indicating that smoking is prohibited in the 
same manner as is described in sections 20(a) and 20(b) of the Smoke Free Illinois 
Act; provided, however, that in the event that there is no clearly defined entrance to a 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
5 

place within which smoking is prohibited pursuant to this chapter, such signs shall be 
posted on or adjacent to an existing identification sign located on the property 

B. Ashtrays Removed: Remove all ashtrays from the place within which smoking is 
prohibited, in the same manner as is described in section 20(c) of the Smoke Free 
Illinois Act.” 

 Section 8: Amendments to Section 4-5-7 of the Village Code.   

 Section 4-5-7, titled "Owner and Occupant Responsibility” of Chapter 5, titled 
“Smoking Regulations,” of Title 4, titled “Health, Sanitation, and Environment,” of the Village Code 
is hereby amended further to read as follows: 

“4-5-7: OWNER AND OCCUPANT RESPONSIBILITY: 

It shall be unlawful for any person who is the owner, occupant, or lessee of any 
place where smoking or the use of e-cigarettes is prohibited pursuant to this 
chapter to permit smoking or the use of e-cigarettes in that place." 

 Section 9: Amendments to Section 5-8-4 of the Village Code.   

 Section 5-8-4, titled "Tobacco Products,” of Chapter 8, titled “Minors,” of Title 5, 
titled “Police and Public Safety,” of the Village Code is hereby amended further to read as follows: 

“5-8-4: TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND E-CIGARETTES: 

A. Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms, phrases, and 
words shall have the meanings given to them in this subsection. All terms, 
phrases, and words used in this section but not defined in this subsection shall 
have the meanings given to them elsewhere in this code. 

 E-CIGARETTE: An electronic device that typically includes a mouthpiece, 
a heating element or atomizer, a battery, and electronic circuits; provides 
a gas derived from a liquid that includes nicotine, propylene glycol, or 
similar substance and perhaps other substances; and is inhaled by a 
user in a manner that simulates or resembles smoking.  The term "e-
cigarette" includes all manner of these devices, regardless of the details 
of a device’s appearance or marketed name, that are manufactured to 
resemble a cigarette, cigar, pipe, or other smoking device.  The term "e-
cigarette" includes the cartridges and component parts of an e-cigarette, 
individually or in any combination. 

 MINOR: A person under the age of eighteen (18) years. 

 TOBACCO PRODUCT: Any item, product, or substance containing tobacco 
leaf, including specifically, but without limitation, cigarettes, cigars, snuff, and 
pipe, chewing, or dipping tobacco. 

B. Sale By Minors: It shall be unlawful for any minor to sell, give, dispense, furnish, 
or otherwise distribute any tobacco product or e-cigarette to any person or 
business within the corporate limits of the Village. 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
6 

C. Sale To Minors: It shall be unlawful for any person or business to sell, give, 
dispense, furnish, or otherwise distribute any tobacco product or e-cigarette  
to any minor within the corporate limits of the Village. 

D. Purchase By Minors: It shall be unlawful for any minor to purchase or otherwise 
acquire any tobacco product or e-cigarette within the corporate limits of the 
Village. 

E. Possession And Use By Minors: It shall be unlawful for any minor to possess 
or use a tobacco product or e-cigarette within the corporate limits of the 
Village; provided, however, that the possession or use of any tobacco product 
or e-cigarette by any minor under the direct supervision and control of the 
parent or guardian of any such minor in the privacy of such parent’s or 
guardian’s home shall not be unlawful.  

F. Notice Required: 

1. It shall be unlawful for any person or business to engage in the sale or 
distribution of tobacco products or e-cigarettes within the corporate limits 
of the village unless such person or business prominently displays as part 
of every display of tobacco products or e-cigarettes offered for sale the 
following notice: 

 THE PURCHASE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS OR E-CIGARETTES BY 
ANY PERSON UNDER AGE OF 18 IS PROHIBITED BY LAW. 

2. Such notice shall be displayed in red letters at least one inch (1”) in height 
on a white background. 

G. Responsibility For Agent Or Employee: Any act constituting a violation of this 
section by an agent or employee of any person or business shall be deemed 
and held to be the act of such person or business, and such person or business 
shall be punishable in the same manner as if such act had been done by such 
person or business personally. 

H. Penalties: 

1. Any minor who violates any provision of this section shall be punished by 
a fine not to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for a first offense, fifty 
dollars ($50.00) for a second offense, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
for a third or subsequent offense. 

2. Any person, other than a minor, who violates any provision of this section 
shall be punished by a fine not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00) for 
a first offense, four hundred dollars ($400.00) for a second offense, and six 
hundred dollars ($600.00) for a third or subsequent offense.” 

 Section 10: Effective Date.   

 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, 
and publication in the manner provided by law. 



 
Additions are bold and double underlined; deletions are struck through. 

 
7 

PASSED this ____ day of _________, 2015, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Lake Bluff, as follows: 

AYES:    

NAYS:    

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

APPROVED this ____ day of _________, 2015. 
 
 
             
       Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
FIRST READING:  September 14, 2015 

SECOND READING:         

PASSED:          

APPROVED:          

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM       

#37201471_v1 



  
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Agenda Item: 16 

Subject: 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A 
BREWPUB AT 16 E. SCRANTON AVENUE 

 
Action Requested: 

 
FIRST READING APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
LAKE EFFECT HOLDINGS, LLC (Petitioner) 

 
Referred To:  

 
PLAN COMMISSION & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (PCZBA) 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
On August 25, 2015 the Village received a zoning petition from Lake Effect Holdings, LLC, 
(“Petitioner”) owner of the Village Commons building, seeking a special use permit (SUP) to operate a 
brewery/brewpub at 16 E. Scranton Avenue.  Currently, the Lake Brewing Company operates at this 
location pursuant to a SUP authorized pursuant to Ord. #2010-08; however, the establishment will soon 
change ownership to Lake Bluff Craft Brewing Company which will require a new SUP under the new 
ownership.  If approved, the Petitioner would then hold the SUP and be authorized to establish a 
brewery/brew pub that is consistent with any conditions required of the SUP and would not require a 
public hearing with the PCZBA for any future brewery/brew pub tenants. 
 
On September 16th the PCZBA conducted a public hearing to consider the zoning petition and 
recommended the Village Board approve the Petitioner’s request subject to the following conditions:  
 

 The business owner obtains adequate, but no fewer than four, downtown employee parking 
permits (for parking at the Train Station) to increase the availability of parking for downtown 
visitors and customers; 
 

 Extend permissible hours of operation to allow an establishment to open one hour earlier, 
Monday - Thursday (from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.), one hour earlier, Friday and Saturday (11:00 
a.m. to 12:00 a.m.), and one hour earlier/one hour later on Sundays (from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 
p.m.); and 
 

 Require deliveries to and distribution from the establishment be made pursuant to Ord. #2007-14 
(an ordinance approving the Village Commons development), including from the rear of the 
building and in the designated loading zones along E. Scranton and Walnut Avenues.  

 
Robert Douglass (of Lake Effect Holdings, LLC) and Dave Burns (of the Lake Bluff Brewing Co.), as 
well as Village Staff, will be in attendance at the meeting to address questions from the Board.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
1. Ordinance Granting a SUP for a Brewpub at 16 E. Scranton Ave.;  
2. PCZBA Staff Report Dated September 11, 2015 (with attachments); and 
3. A Letter Dated September 23, 2015 from Robert Douglass Requesting Second Reading Waiver.  
 
PCZBA’s Recommendation:    Approve the Ordinance.  
 

Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Consideration of First Reading Approval. 

 

Date Referred to Village Board: 9/28/2015 



cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1
















































































































